
 
 

 

Call to Order / 
Roll Call 



 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

STATE OF ALASKA 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY, 
AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 
DIVISION OF OCCUPATIONAL LICENSING 

BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 
 
To protect the health, safety, and welfare of Alaskans by ensuring that  
practitioners possess competency, ethical standards, and integrity necessary to 
offer or deliver quality services to consumers.  
 

VISION STATEMENT 
 
To ensure that all Alaskans receive the best possible dental care. 
 
 



Dental Board Roster 
 

David Nielson, DDS – Board President 

Kelly Lucas, DDS 

Jesse Hronkin, DDS 

Dominic Wenzell, DMD 

Jon Woller, DDS 

Greg Johnson, DDS 

Brittany Dschaak, RDH 

Christina Hansen, RDH 

Bradley Heaston, Public Member 



 
 

 

Ethics Report 



MEMORANDUM State of Alaska 
Department of Law 

TO: 

FROM: Angie White 
Litigation Assistant 

Department of Law 

Opinions, Appeals, & Ethics Section 

DATE: 

FILE NO.: 

TEL. NO.: 

FAX: 

SUBJECT: Executive Branch Ethics Act, AS 
39.52 Quarterly Report  

****SAMPLE LANGUAGE –  PLEASE COPY ONLY THE PARTS THAT APPLY 
ONTO YOUR BOARD OR COMMISSION’S LETTERHEAD **** 

As designated ethics supervisor and chair [executive director] for the 

______________________, I wish to advise you that I have received no notifications of 

potential violations or requests for ethics determinations under the Ethics Act (AS 39.52) 

and have made no written determinations for this quarter.   

OR 
As designated ethics supervisor and chair [executive director] for the 

______________________, I have received ___ notification(s) of a potential violation 

and ____ requests for ethics determinations under the Ethics Act (AS 39.52)     I have 

attached a copy of the notices and requests along with my written determination(s) for 

review by the attorney general.  I did [did not] receive an advisory opinion from the 

Attorney General.  

AND 

Except as addressed above, no other [board member] [commissioner] disclosed a 

potential conflict of interest at a recorded public meeting during this quarter. 

OR 

In addition to the above, at the [date] meeting, [Board member] [Commissioner] 

___________________ disclosed a potential conflict with respect to _______[insert brief 

description]____.   Insert disposition: [S/He refrained from participation.] or [I 

determined s/he could [could not] participate.] or [The Board [Commission] members 

voted to permit [not to permit] participation.] 



CONFIDENTIAL 

ETHICS SUPERVISOR DETERMINATION FOMl 

(Board or Commission Member) 

Board or Commission: 

Member Disclosing Potential Ethics Violation: 

I have detennined that the situation described on the attached ethics disclosure form 

C does or would violate AS 39.52.110 - .190. Identify applicable statute below. 

C does not or would not violate AS 39.52.110 - .190. 

Signature of Designated Ethics Supervisor (Chair) 

Printed Name of Designated Ethics Supervisor 

Date: 

COMMENTS (Please attach a separate sheet for additional space): 

Note: Disdosure Form must be attached. Under AS 39.52.220, if the chair or a majority of the board or 
commission, not including the disclosing member. dctcnnincs that a violation of AS 39.52.110 39.52.190 will exist 

if the member participates. the member shall refrain from voting, deliberating, or pa1ticipating in the matter. A 
member will not be liable tmcler the Ethics Act for action in accordance with such a detennination so long as rlle 

member has folly disclosed all facts reasonably necessaty to the detennination and the attorney general has not 
advised the member. chair, or board or conunission that the action is a Yiolation. Fo1ward disclosmes with 
detenninations to the State Ethics Attorney as part of your quarterly report. Quarterly reports are submitted to 

Litigation Assistant, Opinions, Appeals & Ethics, Department of Law, 1031 W. 4th Avenue. Suite 200, Anchorage, 
AK 99501. Revised 2012 



Who Is My Designated Ethics Supervisor? - Alaska Department of Law 

State of Alaska 
Department of Law 

Who Is My Designated Ethics Supervisor? 

Page 1 of 2 

Every state public officer, employee or board or commission member, has a designated 
ethics supervisor. 

Executive Agencies 

The ethics supervisor for each agency is the Commissioner or a senior manager to whom the 
Commissioner has delegated the function. The current ethics supervisor for each agency is 
listed below. The ethics supervisor for a Commissioner is Guy Bell, Director of 
Administrative Services in the Office of Governor, by delegation from the Governor. 

Boards and Commissions 

The Chair of each board and commission serves as the ethics supervisor for the other 
members and any executive director. The ethics supervisor for the Chair is Guy Bell, Director 
of Administrative Services in the Office of Governor, by delegation from the Governor. If a 
board or commission employs staff, the executive director serves as the ethics supervisor for 
these employees. 

Public Corporations 

The Chair of the board serves as the ethics supervisor for the other members of the board 
and any executive director. The executive director is the ethics supervisor for employees of 
the corporation. 

Office of the Governor 

The ethics supervisor for the Governor and Lieutenant Governor is the Attorney General. By 
delegation from the Governor, the ethics supervisor for the staff of the offices of the 
Governor and Lieutenant Governor is Guy Bell, Director of Administrative Services. 

University of Alaska 

By delegation of the University President, the ethics supervisor for university employees is 
Associate General Counsel Andy Harrington. 

EXECUTIVE BRANCH AGENCIES 

http://law.alaska.gov/doclibrarv/ethics/MvDES.html 4/7/2015 























 
 

 

Review / Approve 
Agenda 







 
 

 

Review / Approve 
Past Meeting 

Minutes 

































 

 

Investigations Report 



 
 

 

Public Comment 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

Division 
Update 



 
 
 
 

PDMP Report 



Alaska Prescription Drug Monitoring Program 
Summary Prepared for the Board of Dental Examiners 

March 2021 
 

Contact: Lisa Sherrell | PDMP Manager| akpdmp@alaska.gov | 907-465-1039 

This report contains summary data from the Prescription Drug Monitoring Program (PDMP). Data is 
provided as a courtesy for the board and is intended to be used for informational purposes only.  
 
Notices: 

• The new contract with Appriss will start April 2021 
 
Registration (changes since December noted) 

Portal 
Number of licensed Dentists: 844 (increase of 3) 
Number of Dentists with DEA registrations: 717 (increase of 1) 
Number of PDMP Dental registrations: 451 (20% increase) 
Compliance rate (DEA and PDMP registrations): 63%  

 
AWARxE (PDMP) 

Number registered with the PDMP: 681 (increase of 9) 
Compliance rate (DEA and AWARxE): 95% 

 
Use 
Q4 2020 Review compliance: 5.92% (439 dispensations; 26 searched) 
 
MME Use (Q3/Q4 2020) 
 Number of patients treated with over 90 MME: 50 (28% increase)  

Number of patients treated with over 120 MME: 14 (55% increase)  
Number of patients treated with dangerous combinations (benzodiazepines and opioids): 278 
(11% increase)  

 
Delinquent Reporters 
Providers who directly dispense are required to report daily. We are currently gathering this information 
on the renewal applications. As of this report, there were five dentists who indicated they directly 
dispense. 

 
Recommendations 

• Encourage increased reviewing, including the use of delegates 
• Provide guidance to licensees on prescribing practices related to the use of dangerous 

combinations 
• Providers should be notified they are not able to prescribe until their registration in AWARxE has 

been approved 
• Encourage licensees to verify their user roles and specialties in AWARxE to improve the accuracy 

of reporting 
• Improve communication to licensees, post-licensure, to give better instructions on how to comply 

with PDMP statutes and regulations 
• Develop a plan for communication with licensees about mandatory reporting 

 
 
 
 





NOTICE OF PROPOSED CHANGES IN THE REGULATIONS OF THE  
ALASKA BOARD OF PHARMACY 

 
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: The Board of Pharmacy proposes to adopt regulations regarding registration 
with the prescription drug monitoring program controlled substance prescription database.   
 
The Board of Pharmacy (Board) proposes to adopt regulation changes in Title 12, Chapter 52 of the 
Alaska Administrative Code, dealing with registration with the prescription drug monitoring program 
(PDMP) controlled substance prescription database including the following: 

 
12 AAC 52.855. Registration with the prescription drug monitoring program controlled 
substance prescription database, is proposed to require pharmacists or practitioners licensed in this 
state who holds a federal Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) registration number to register 
with the PDMP within 30 days of initial licensure as a prescriber. 

 
You may comment on the proposed regulation changes, including the potential costs to private persons of 
complying with the proposed changes, by submitting written comments to Jun Maiquis, Regulations 
Specialist, Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing, P.O. Box 110806, Juneau, AK  
99811-0806. Additionally, the Board will accept comments by facsimile at (907) 465-2974 and by 
electronic mail at RegulationsAndPublicComment@alaska.gov. Comments may also be submitted 
through the Alaska Online Public Notice System by accessing this notice on the system at 
http://notice.alaska.gov/200999, and using the comment link. The comments must be received not later 
than 4:30 p.m. on February 11, 2021. Comments received after this deadline will not be considered by 
the Board. 
 
You may submit written questions relevant to the proposed action to Jun Maiquis, Regulations Specialist, 
Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing, P.O. Box 110806, Juneau, AK  99811-
0806 or by e-mail at RegulationsAndPublicComment@alaska.gov. The questions must be received at 
least 10 days before the end of the public comment period. The Board will aggregate its response to 
substantially similar questions and make the questions and responses available on the Alaska Online 
Public Notice System and on the Board’s website at 
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/cbpl/ProfessionalLicensing/BoardofPharmacy.aspx. The Board 
may, but is not required to, answer written questions received after the 10-day cut-off date and before the 
end of the comment period.  
 
If you are a person with a disability who needs a special accommodation in order to participate in this 
process, please contact Jun Maiquis at (907) 465-2537 or RegulationsAndPublicComment@alaska.gov 
not later than February 4, 2021 to ensure that any necessary accommodation can be provided. 
 
A copy of the proposed regulation changes is available on the Alaska Online Public Notice System and by 
contacting Jun Maiquis at (907) 465-2537 or RegulationsAndPublicComment@alaska.gov, or go to 
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/portals/5/pub/PHA-PDMP-1220.pdf. 
 
After the public comment period ends, the Board will either adopt the proposed regulation changes or 
other provisions dealing with the same subject, without further notice, or decide to take no action. The 
language of the final regulation may be different from that of the proposed regulation. You should 
comment during the time allowed if your interests could be affected. Written comments and questions 
received are public records and are subject to public inspection. 
 
Statutory Authority: AS 08.80.005; AS 08.80.030; AS 17.30.200 
Statutes Being Implemented, Interpreted, or Made Specific: AS 08.80.005; AS 08.80.030; AS 
17.30.200 
 
Fiscal Information: The proposed regulation changes are not expected to require an increased 
appropriation. 



 
DATE:           1/8/2021                                                          /s/                                    
                              Jun Maiquis, Regulations Specialist   
           Division of Corporations, Business and 

Professional Licensing  
 
For each occupation regulated under the Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing, 
the Division keeps a list of individuals or organizations who are interested in the regulations of that 
occupation. The Division automatically sends a Notice of Proposed Regulations to the parties on the 
appropriate list each time there is a proposed change in an occupation's regulations in Title 12 of the 
Alaska Administrative Code. If you would like your address added to or removed from such a list, send 
your request to the Division at the address above, giving your name, either your e-mail address or mailing 
address (as you prefer for receiving notices), and the occupational area in which you are interested. 
 
 
 

ADDITIONAL REGULATION NOTICE INFORMATION 
(AS 44.62.190(d)) 

 
1. Adopting agency: Board of Pharmacy – Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic 

Development, Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing. 
 

2. General subject of regulation: Registration with the prescription drug monitoring program controlled 
substance prescription database (PDMP). 

 
3. Citation of regulation: 12 AAC 52.855. 
 
4. Department of Law file number: To be assigned. 
 
5. Reason for the proposed action: Update and clarification of current regulations; compliance with 

state statute. 
 
6. Appropriation/Allocation: Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing – #2360. 
 
7. Estimated annual cost to comply with the proposed action to: 
 A private person: $25 initial PDMP registration fee; $25 PDMP biennial registration renewal fee. 
 Another state agency: None known. 
 A municipality: None known.  
 
8. Cost of implementation to the state agency and available funding (in thousands of dollars):  

No costs are expected in FY 2021 or in subsequent years.  
 
9. The name of the contact person for the regulation: 
 Laura Carrillo, Executive Administrator 
 Alaska Board of Pharmacy 
 Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing 
 Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development 
 Telephone: (907) 465-1073 
 E-mail: laura.carrillo@alaska.gov 
 

10. The origin of the proposed action: Board of Pharmacy. 
 

11. Date:   1/8/2021    Prepared by:                       /s/                                 
       Jun Maiquis 
       Regulations Specialist 



Register           ,                  2021  PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 
 

Rev. 12/16/2020 Draft 1 

Chapter 52. Board of Pharmacy. 
 
(Words in boldface and underlined indicate language being added; words [CAPITALIZED 
AND BRACKETED] indicate language being deleted.) 
  
12 AAC 52.855 is amended to read: 

 12 AAC 52.855. Registration with the prescription drug monitoring program 

controlled substance prescription database. (a) A prescriber shall register with the PDMP 

within 30 days after the date of initial licensure or registration with the federal Drug 

Enforcement Administration (DEA), whichever is later. A licensed pharmacist practicing in 

this state shall register with the prescription drug monitoring program’s controlled substance 

prescription database (PDMP). Registration must be completed within 30 days of initial 

licensure if the pharmacist’s practice is expected to involve [BEFORE] dispensing a schedule 

II, III, or IV controlled substance under federal law. If not dispensing in this state, a 

pharmacist must submit a PDMP dispensation exemption form provided by the board 

within 30 days of initial licensure. A pharmacist who submitted a dispensation exemption 

form must register before dispensing a schedule II, III, or IV controlled substance under 

federal law in this state. 

 (b) Except as provided in (a) of this section, before [BEFORE] dispensing, prescribing, 

or administering a schedule II, III, or IV controlled substance under federal law, a pharmacist or 

practitioner required to register with the PDMP must 

  (1) register online on the PDMP website; and 

  (2) pay the fee established in 12 AAC 02.107. 

 (c) After completing the registration requirements, a pharmacist or practitioner required 

to register with the PDMP will be issued a user account, login name, and password by the 

department.  



Register           ,                  2021  PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 
 

Rev. 12/16/2020 Draft 2 

 (d) A pharmacist or practitioner required to register with the PDMP must access 

information in the PDMP using the user account, login name, and password issued by the 

department. 

 (e) A pharmacist or practitioner required to register with the PDMP may access 

information in the PDMP using another registrant’s credentials only as authorized by a contract 

executed by the department for the purposes of AS 47.05.270. (Eff. 12/29/2011, Register 200; am 

6/7/2018, Register 226; am ____/____/______, Register _____) 

Authority:  AS 08.80.005  AS 08.80.030  AS 17.30.200 



State of Alaska Dental Board PDMP Penalty Matrix- Proposed 

Prescribing Issues    

Inappropriate prescribing due to incompetence or negligence.   AS 08.36.315 

Failure to practice pain management with sufficient knowledge, skills, and training and in accordance 
with professional standards. AS 08.36.315 

Proposed Sanctions 

Reprimand, Civil Fine of up to $25,000, require Proper Prescribing Course CE, License suspension.  
Discipline to be commensurate with severity of violation. 

Prescribing Issues 

Failure to maintain appropriate records for prescribing controlled substances.  AS 08.36.315 

Failure to review information from the PDMP before prescribing schedule II or III controlled substances.  
AS 17.30.200 b 

Failure to comply with maximum dosage for opioid prescriptions.  AS 08.36.355 

Proposed Sanctions 

Reprimand, Civil Fine of up to $25,000, Proper Prescribing Course CE, Medical Record Keeping CE.  
Discipline to be commensurate with the severity of the violation. 

Prescribing issues 

Failure of a licensee who has a DEA registration to register with the PDMP when no schedule II or III 
controlled prescriptions have been issued.  AS 17.30.200, 12 ACC 28.953 

Proposed Sanctions 

Civil Fine of $1,000 for each violation.  Discipline to commensurate with severity of violation. 

Education Requirements 

Failure of applicants for licensure to receive education in pain management and opioid use and 
addiction prior to licensure, unless the applicant has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the board that 
the applicant does not currently hold a valid federal DEA registration number. AS 08.36.110 

Failure to no provide documentation of at least two hours of education in pain management and opioid 
misuse and addiction in the two years preceding application for renewal of license, unless the applicant 
has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the board that the applicant does not currently hold a valid 
federal DEA registration number.  AS 08.36.070 

Proposed Sanctions 

Reprimand, require completion of required education before license is renewed or approved. 

 



 

 
Unprofessional Conduct issues 

  
Allowing an unlicensed individual to perform duties that would normally be performed by a 
licensed individual.  AS 17.30.200(d) 

  
Proposed sanctions 

  
o   First time violation – Imposition of civil fine without censure or reprimand (technical 

violation not related to the delivery of health care); Civil Fine of $1,000 for each 
violation or each unlicensed individual, unless there are migrating factors. 

o   Additional violations, or if mitigating factors - Reprimand; Civil Fine of up to $10,000 
for each violation or each unlicensed individual. Discipline to be commensurate with 
the severity of the violation. 

 



 

 
 



 

 

Regulations Project 

 



 

SB0086A -1- SB 86 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

32-LS0531\A 
 
 

 
 
 

 SENATE BILL NO. 86 
 

IN THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA 
 

THIRTY-SECOND LEGISLATURE - FIRST SESSION 
 
BY THE SENATE LABOR AND COMMERCE COMMITTEE 
 
Introduced:  2/15/21 
Referred:  Labor & Commerce, Finance  
 
 

A BILL 
 

FOR AN ACT ENTITLED 
 
"An Act relating to occupational licensing; relating to temporary licenses, permits, and 1 

certificates; and providing for an effective date." 2 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA: 3 

   * Section 1. AS 08.01.062 is repealed and reenacted to read: 4 

Sec. 08.01.062. Temporary licenses, permits, and certificates. (a) The 5 

department may on an expedited basis issue a temporary license, permit, or certificate 6 

under this section to engage in an occupation regulated under this chapter to an 7 

individual who holds a corresponding license, permit, or certificate in good standing in 8 

another jurisdiction and pays the required fee for a temporary license, permit, or 9 

certificate established by the department.  10 

(b)  A temporary license or permit issued under this section is valid for one 11 

year. A temporary license, permit, or certificate issued under this section allows the 12 

temporary license, permit, or certificate holder to temporarily practice the occupation 13 

for which the license, permit, or certificate was granted, within the scope designated 14 



   32-LS0531\A 

SB 86 -2- SB0086A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

by the department or applicable board.  1 

   * Sec. 2. AS 08.11.050 is amended to read: 2 

Sec. 08.11.050. Fees. The department shall set fees under AS 08.01.065 for 3 

each of the following:  4 

(1)  application;  5 

(2)  credential review;  6 

(3)  audiologist license and speech-language pathologist license;  7 

(4)  [TEMPORARY LICENSE;  8 

(5)]  renewal of license;  9 

(5) [(6)]  delinquency;  10 

(6) [(7)]  reinstatement;  11 

(7) [(8)]  duplicate license;  12 

(8) [(9)]  speech-language pathologist assistant registration application 13 

and renewal.  14 

   * Sec. 3. AS 08.13.070 is amended to read: 15 

Sec. 08.13.070. License required. A person may not  16 

(1)  practice barbering, hairdressing, hair braiding, manicuring, 17 

esthetics, body piercing, tattooing, or permanent cosmetic coloring without a license, 18 

[TEMPORARY PERMIT,] temporary license issued under AS 08.01.062, 19 

temporary supervised practice license, or student permit unless exempted under 20 

AS 08.13.160(d);  21 

(2)  practice barbering, hairdressing, hair braiding, manicuring, 22 

esthetics, body piercing, tattooing, or permanent cosmetic coloring except in a shop or 23 

school licensed under this chapter unless exempted under AS 08.13.160(d) or 24 

permitted under AS 08.13.160(e);  25 

(3)  open or conduct a school of barbering, hairdressing, manicuring, or 26 

esthetics without a license;  27 

(4)  teach in a school of barbering, hairdressing, manicuring, or 28 

esthetics, or supervise an apprentice in barbering, hairdressing, manicuring, or 29 

esthetics without an instructor's license;  30 

(5)  operate a shop in violation of AS 08.13.120;  31 



   32-LS0531\A 

SB0086A -3- SB 86 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

(6)  permit an employee or other person being supervised who is not 1 

exempted under AS 08.13.160(d) to practice barbering, hairdressing, hair braiding, 2 

manicuring, esthetics, body piercing, tattooing, or permanent cosmetic coloring 3 

without a license, [TEMPORARY PERMIT,] temporary license issued under 4 

AS 08.01.062, temporary supervised practice license, or student permit;  5 

(7)  permit the use of the person's license, [TEMPORARY PERMIT,] 6 

temporary license issued under AS 08.01.062, temporary supervised practice 7 

license, or student permit by another person;  8 

(8)  obtain or attempt to obtain a license, [TEMPORARY PERMIT,] 9 

temporary license issued under AS 08.01.062, temporary supervised practice 10 

license, or student permit by fraudulent means.  11 

   * Sec. 4. AS 08.13.130(a) is amended to read: 12 

(a)  A practitioner shall display the practitioner's license in a conspicuous 13 

location in the practitioner's place of business. Each shop owner is responsible for the 14 

conspicuous display of the shop's license and the licenses of employees and 15 

individuals renting booths in the shop. A person holding a student permit, temporary 16 

license issued under AS 08.01.062, or temporary supervised practice license [, OR 17 

TEMPORARY PERMIT] shall display the permit or license in a conspicuous location 18 

in the school in which the person is enrolled or the shop in which the person works. 19 

The school or shop owner is responsible for the display of a permit or license for each 20 

enrolled student, apprentice, or temporary license holder.  21 

   * Sec. 5. AS 08.13.150 is amended to read: 22 

Sec. 08.13.150. Disciplinary sanctions and grounds for refusal of a license 23 

or permit. The board may, in addition to the actions authorized under AS 08.01.075, 24 

refuse, suspend, or revoke a license, student permit, temporary license issued under 25 

AS 08.01.062, or temporary supervised practice license [, OR TEMPORARY 26 

PERMIT] for failure to comply with this chapter, with a regulation adopted under this 27 

chapter, with a regulation adopted by the Department of Environmental Conservation 28 

under AS 44.46.020, or with an order of the board.  29 

   * Sec. 6. AS 08.13.175 is amended to read: 30 

Sec. 08.13.175. Temporary supervised practice license. A person who meets 31 



   32-LS0531\A 

SB 86 -4- SB0086A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

the requirements of AS 08.13.080(a)(1), (2), (3), (4), or (6) is entitled to receive a 1 

temporary supervised practice license [BE TEMPORARILY LICENSED] after 2 

applying for examination under this chapter if the applicant works under the direct 3 

supervision, and within the physical presence, of a person who is licensed in the area 4 

of practice for which the applicant has applied for examination. A temporary 5 

supervised practice license issued under this section is valid for 120 days and is 6 

nonrenewable. A person may not receive more than one temporary supervised 7 

practice license for each area of practice licensed under this chapter. An application 8 

for a temporary supervised practice license must be signed by the supervising 9 

licensee and accompanied by the temporary supervised practice license fee required 10 

under AS 08.13.185.  11 

   * Sec. 7. AS 08.13.185(a) is amended to read: 12 

(a)  The Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development 13 

shall set fees under AS 08.01.065 for initial licenses and renewals for the following:  14 

(1)  schools;  15 

(2)  school owners;  16 

(3)  instructor;  17 

(4)  shop owner;  18 

(5)  practitioner of barbering;  19 

(6)  practitioner of hairdressing;  20 

(7)  practitioner of manicuring;  21 

(8)  practitioner of esthetics;  22 

(9)  practitioner of tattooing;  23 

(10)  practitioner of body piercing;  24 

(11)  temporary shop license;  25 

(12)  [TEMPORARY PERMIT;  26 

(13)]  temporary supervised practice license;  27 

(13) [(14)]  student permit;  28 

(14) [(15)]  endorsement for advanced manicuring;  29 

(15) [(16)]  practitioner of hair braiding;  30 

(16) [(17)]  practitioner of permanent cosmetic coloring;  31 



   32-LS0531\A 

SB0086A -5- SB 86 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

(17) [(18)]  practitioner of non-chemical barbering.  1 

   * Sec. 8. AS 08.13.190 is amended to read: 2 

Sec. 08.13.190. Failure to possess a license or permit. (a) A person who 3 

practices barbering, hairdressing, hair braiding, esthetics, tattooing, permanent 4 

cosmetic coloring, or body piercing, or operates a shop, or operates a school of 5 

barbering, hairdressing, or esthetics, or teaches in a school of barbering, hairdressing, 6 

or esthetics, without a license, [TEMPORARY PERMIT,] temporary license issued 7 

under AS 08.01.062, temporary supervised practice license, or student permit and 8 

who is not exempt under AS 08.13.120 or 08.13.160(d) [UNDER AS 08.13.160(d)] is 9 

guilty of a class B misdemeanor.  10 

(b)  A person who practices manicuring, operates a shop for manicuring, 11 

operates a school of manicuring, or teaches in a school of manicuring without the 12 

appropriate license, [TEMPORARY PERMIT,] temporary license issued under 13 

AS 08.01.062, temporary supervised practice license, or student permit and who is 14 

not exempt under AS 08.13.120 or 08.13.160(d) is guilty of a violation.  15 

   * Sec. 9. AS 08.20.180(a) is amended to read: 16 

(a)  An applicant for an examination, reexamination, [ISSUANCE OF A 17 

TEMPORARY PERMIT UNDER AS 08.20.160, ISSUANCE OF A LOCUM 18 

TENENS PERMIT UNDER AS 08.20.163,] issuance of a license by credentials under 19 

AS 08.20.141, one-time issuance of a retired status license, or initial issuance or 20 

renewal of an active or inactive license shall pay a fee established under 21 

AS 08.01.065.  22 

   * Sec. 10. AS 08.36.100 is amended to read: 23 

Sec. 08.36.100. License required. Except as provided in AS 08.36.238 [AND 24 

08.36.254], a person may not practice, or attempt to practice, dentistry without a 25 

license.  26 

   * Sec. 11. AS 08.63.130 is amended to read: 27 

Sec. 08.63.130. Temporary practice license for the practice of marital and 28 

family therapy. (a) The board shall issue a temporary practice license for the practice 29 

of marital and family therapy to an applicant who satisfies the requirements of 30 

AS 08.63.100(a)(1), (2), and (3)(A), (B), and (C) and has been approved by the board 31 



   32-LS0531\A 

SB 86 -6- SB0086A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

to take the marital and family therapy examination.  1 

(b)  A person may practice under a temporary practice license until the board 2 

issues the results of the first marital and family therapy examination given after 3 

issuance of the person's temporary practice license and either issues or denies a 4 

license under AS 08.63.100 to the person.  5 

(c)  If a licensee under this section fails the marital and family therapy 6 

examination, the board may not renew the person's temporary practice license.  7 

   * Sec. 12. AS 08.64.279 is amended to read: 8 

Sec. 08.64.279. Interview for permits. An applicant for an intern permit or [,] 9 

a resident permit [, OR A TEMPORARY PERMIT FOR LOCUM TENENS 10 

PRACTICE] may be interviewed in person by the board, a member of the board, the 11 

executive secretary of the board, or a person designated for that purpose by the board.  12 

   * Sec. 13. AS 08.64.315 is amended to read: 13 

Sec. 08.64.315. Fees. The department shall set fees under AS 08.01.065 for 14 

each of the following:  15 

(1)  application;  16 

(2)  license by examination;  17 

(3)  license by endorsement or waiver of examination;  18 

(4)  [TEMPORARY PERMIT;  19 

(5)  LOCUM TENENS PERMIT;  20 

(6)]  license renewal, active;  21 

(5) [(7)]  license renewal, inactive;  22 

(6) [(8)]  license by reexamination.  23 

   * Sec. 14. AS 08.68.220 is amended to read: 24 

Sec. 08.68.220. Fees. The Department of Commerce, Community, and 25 

Economic Development shall set fees under AS 08.01.065 for each of the following:  26 

(1)  registered nursing:  27 

(A)  application;  28 

(B)  license by examination;  29 

(C)  license by endorsement;  30 

(D)  license renewal;  31 



   32-LS0531\A 

SB0086A -7- SB 86 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

[(E)  TEMPORARY PERMIT;] 1 

(2)  practical nursing:  2 

(A)  application;  3 

(B)  license by examination;  4 

(C)  license by endorsement;  5 

(D)  license renewal;  6 

[(E)  TEMPORARY PERMIT;]  7 

(3)  advanced practice registered nursing:  8 

(A)  application;  9 

(B)  license by certification examination;  10 

(C)  license by endorsement;  11 

(D)  license renewal [;  12 

(E)  TEMPORARY PERMIT].  13 

   * Sec. 15. AS 08.80.160 is amended to read: 14 

Sec. 08.80.160. Fees. The Department of Commerce, Community, and 15 

Economic Development shall set fees under AS 08.01.065 for the following:  16 

(1)  examination;  17 

(2)  reexamination;  18 

(3)  investigation for licensing by license transfer;  19 

(4)  pharmacist license;  20 

(5)  [TEMPORARY LICENSE;  21 

(6)]  pharmacy technician license;  22 

(6) [(7)]  pharmacy intern license;  23 

[(8)  EMERGENCY PERMIT;]  24 

(7) [(9)]  license amendment or replacement;  25 

(8) [(10)]  registration or licensure of a facility classified under 26 

AS 08.80.157(b).  27 

   * Sec. 16. AS 08.84.010(b) is amended to read: 28 

(b)  The board shall control all matters pertaining to the licensing of physical 29 

therapists, physical therapy assistants, occupational therapists, and occupational 30 

therapy assistants and the practice of physical therapy and the practice of occupational 31 



   32-LS0531\A 

SB 86 -8- SB0086A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

therapy. The board shall  1 

(1)  pass upon the qualifications of applicants;  2 

(2)  provide for the examination of applicants;  3 

(3)  issue [TEMPORARY PERMITS AND] licenses to persons 4 

qualified under this chapter;  5 

(4)  suspend, revoke, or refuse to issue or renew a license under 6 

AS 08.84.120;  7 

(5)  keep a current register listing the name, business address, date, and 8 

number of the license of each person who is licensed to practice under this chapter;  9 

(6)  adopt regulations under AS 44.62 (Administrative Procedure Act) 10 

necessary to carry out the purposes of this chapter including regulations establishing 11 

qualifications for licensure and renewal of licensure under this chapter.  12 

   * Sec. 17. AS 08.84.050 is amended to read: 13 

Sec. 08.84.050. Fees. The Department of Commerce, Community, and 14 

Economic Development shall set fees under AS 08.01.065 for the following:  15 

(1)  application;  16 

(2)  license by examination;  17 

(3)  license by acceptance of credentials;  18 

(4)  renewal [;  19 

(5)  TEMPORARY PERMIT;  20 

(6)  LIMITED PERMIT].  21 

   * Sec. 18. AS 08.84.150 is amended to read: 22 

Sec. 08.84.150. License required; exceptions. (a) It is unlawful for a person 23 

to practice physical therapy without being licensed under this chapter unless the 24 

person is  25 

(1)  a student in an accredited physical therapy program;  26 

(2)  a graduate of a foreign school of physical therapy fulfilling the 27 

internship requirement of AS 08.84.032, and then only unless under the continuous 28 

direction and immediate supervision of a physical therapist; or  29 

(3)  issued a temporary [LIMITED] permit under AS 08.01.062 30 

[AS 08.84.075].  31 



   32-LS0531\A 

SB0086A -9- SB 86 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

(b)  A person may not provide services that the person describes as 1 

occupational therapy without being licensed under this chapter unless the person is  2 

(1)  a student in an accredited occupational therapy program or in a 3 

supervised field work program;  4 

(2)  a graduate of a foreign school of occupational therapy fulfilling the 5 

internship requirement of AS 08.84.032, and then only unless under the continuous 6 

direction and immediate supervision of an occupational therapist;  7 

(3)  an occupational therapist or occupational therapy assistant 8 

employed by the United States government while in the discharge of official duties;  9 

(4)  granted a temporary [LIMITED] permit under AS 08.01.062 10 

[AS 08.84.075];  11 

(5)  licensed under this title and uses occupational therapy skills in the 12 

practice of the profession for which the license is issued; or  13 

(6)  employed as a teacher or teacher's aide by an educational 14 

institution and is required to use occupational therapy skills during the course of 15 

employment, if  16 

(A)  the occupational therapy skills are used under a program 17 

implemented by the employer and developed by a licensed occupational 18 

therapist;  19 

(B)  the employer maintains direct supervision of the person's 20 

use of occupational therapy skills; and  21 

(C)  the person does not represent to  22 

(i)  be an occupational therapist or occupational therapy 23 

assistant; and  24 

(ii)  practice occupational therapy.  25 

   * Sec. 19. AS 08.98.120(a) is amended to read: 26 

(a)  A person may not practice veterinary medicine, surgery, or dentistry unless 27 

the person is licensed as a veterinarian under this chapter or has a temporary permit 28 

issued under AS 08.01.062 [AS 08.98.186], except that a person may perform 29 

functions authorized by  30 

(1)  regulation of the board if the person is licensed as a veterinary 31 



   32-LS0531\A 

SB 86 -10- SB0086A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

technician; or  1 

(2)  a permit issued under AS 08.02.050 if the person is employed by 2 

an agency that has a permit issued under AS 08.02.050.  3 

   * Sec. 20. AS 08.98.180 is amended to read: 4 

Sec. 08.98.180. Temporary supervised practice license. A person who meets 5 

the requirements of AS 08.98.165(a)(1), (4), and (5) is entitled to receive a 6 

temporary supervised practice license [BE TEMPORARILY LICENSED] after 7 

applying for examination if the person works under the supervision of a licensed 8 

veterinarian. A license issued under this section is valid until the results of the 9 

examinations are published. A person may not receive more than one temporary 10 

license. An application for a temporary supervised practice license must be signed by 11 

the supervising veterinarian and accompanied by the temporary license fee required 12 

under AS 08.98.190.  13 

   * Sec. 21. AS 08.98.190 is amended to read: 14 

Sec. 08.98.190. Fees. The department shall set fees under AS 08.01.065 for the 15 

following:  16 

(1)  application;  17 

(2)  examination;  18 

(3)  investigation of credentials;  19 

(4)  license;  20 

(5)  license renewal;  21 

(6)  temporary supervised practice license [;  22 

(7)  TEMPORARY PERMIT].  23 

   * Sec. 22. AS 08.01.063, 08.01.064(b), 08.01.064(c), 08.01.064(d); AS 08.11.020, 24 

08.11.025; AS 08.13.170; AS 08.15.030; AS 08.20.160, 08.20.163; AS 08.26.050; 25 

AS 08.36.254; AS 08.45.035; AS 08.64.101(b)(2), 08.64.270, 08.64.275; AS 08.68.210; 26 

AS 08.70.130; AS 08.80.150, 08.80.155; AS 08.84.065, 08.84.075; AS 08.86.135, 08.86.166; 27 

AS 08.95.125; and AS 08.98.186 are repealed. 28 

   * Sec. 23. This Act takes effect January 1, 2022. 29 



 

HB0015a -1- HB 15 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

32-LS0120\B 
 
 

 
 
 

 HOUSE BILL NO. 15 
 

IN THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA 
 

THIRTY-SECOND LEGISLATURE - FIRST SESSION 
 
BY REPRESENTATIVE THOMPSON 
 
Introduced:  1/8/21 
Referred:  Prefiled  
 
 

A BILL 
 

FOR AN ACT ENTITLED 
 
"An Act relating to occupational licensing; relating to temporary licenses and permits; 1 

relating to certification of teachers; and providing for an effective date." 2 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA: 3 

   * Section 1. AS 08.01.062 is repealed and reenacted to read: 4 

Sec. 08.01.062. Temporary licenses and permits. (a) The department shall 5 

issue to an applicant a temporary license or permit under this section to engage in an 6 

occupation regulated under this chapter if  7 

(1)  the applicant 8 

(A)  is licensed or credentialed to practice the occupation in 9 

another state or territory of the United States or a foreign country, territory, or 10 

province that 11 

(i)  has requirements for a license or permit to practice 12 

the occupation that are substantially equivalent to or greater than the 13 

requirements for the occupation under this title; or 14 



   32-LS0120\B 

HB 15 -2- HB0015a 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

(ii)  authorizes a scope of practice substantially 1 

equivalent to the scope of practice of the corresponding license or 2 

permit in this state; 3 

(B)  meets the qualifications and requirements for a license or 4 

permit to practice that occupation under this title and resides in a state or 5 

territory of the United States or in a foreign country, territory, or province that 6 

does not license individuals to practice that occupation; 7 

(C)  is awaiting the results of an examination required for 8 

licensure in the occupation and meets the remaining qualifications and 9 

requirements for licensure in that occupation under this title; or 10 

(D)  meets the qualifications and requirements for a license or 11 

permit to engage in that occupation under this title through military education, 12 

training, and service under AS 08.01.064(a) and does not already hold a license 13 

or permit to practice that occupation in another jurisdiction as a member of one 14 

of the armed forces listed in AS 08.01.064(a)(2); 15 

(2)  at the time of the application, the applicant is not  16 

(A)  subject to disciplinary action related to the occupation in 17 

another jurisdiction; or  18 

(B)  the subject of an ongoing review or disciplinary proceeding 19 

by the occupation's licensing entity in that jurisdiction; 20 

(3)  within the 10 years immediately preceding the date of the 21 

application, the applicant has not committed an act in another jurisdiction that, at the 22 

time the act was committed, would have constituted grounds for the denial or 23 

revocation of a license, certificate, or permit to practice that occupation under this 24 

title; and 25 

(4)  the applicable fees are paid. 26 

(b)  If the department or applicable board requires that an applicant for an 27 

occupational license or permit undergo a criminal history record check, an applicant 28 

for a temporary license or permit for that occupation is subject to the same 29 

requirement. The department may consider an application and grant a temporary 30 

license or permit before obtaining a result from the criminal history record check. If 31 



   32-LS0120\B 

HB0015a -3- HB 15 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

the department later receives criminal record information that would authorize the 1 

department or a board to take disciplinary action against a temporary license or permit 2 

holder, the department or board shall exercise that authority. 3 

(c)  A temporary license or permit issued under this section is valid for 180 4 

days. An applicant may apply for one 180-day extension, which may be approved at 5 

the discretion of the department. 6 

(d)  A temporary license or permit issued under this section for an occupation 7 

regulated under this chapter allows the temporary license or permit holder to 8 

temporarily practice the occupation for which the license or permit was granted, 9 

within the scope designated by the department or applicable board.  10 

(e)  The department may extend the 180-day temporary license or permit 11 

period under (c) of this section for an applicant for a temporary license or permit under 12 

(a)(1)(D) of this section if the applicant shows that the required occupational training 13 

period is longer than 180 days. 14 

(f)  The department shall issue a license or permit under this section to an 15 

active duty member of the armed forces of the United States or a spouse of an active 16 

duty member of the armed forces of the United States who meets the requirements of 17 

this section within 30 days after the department receives the person's complete 18 

application for the license or permit. 19 

   * Sec. 2. AS 08.13.175 is amended to read: 20 

Sec. 08.13.175. Temporary license. After [A PERSON WHO MEETS THE 21 

REQUIREMENTS OF AS 08.13.080(a)(1), (2), (3), (4), OR (6) IS ENTITLED TO 22 

BE TEMPORARILY LICENSED AFTER] applying for examination under this 23 

chapter, an [IF THE] applicant who receives a temporary license under 24 

AS 08.01.062 may work only [WORKS] under the direct supervision, and within the 25 

physical presence, of a person who is licensed in the area of practice for which the 26 

applicant has applied for examination. [A TEMPORARY LICENSE ISSUED 27 

UNDER THIS SECTION IS VALID FOR 120 DAYS AND IS NONRENEWABLE. 28 

A PERSON MAY NOT RECEIVE MORE THAN ONE TEMPORARY LICENSE 29 

FOR EACH AREA OF PRACTICE LICENSED UNDER THIS CHAPTER. AN 30 

APPLICATION FOR A TEMPORARY LICENSE MUST BE SIGNED BY THE 31 



   32-LS0120\B 

HB 15 -4- HB0015a 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

SUPERVISING LICENSEE AND ACCOMPANIED BY THE TEMPORARY 1 

LICENSE FEE REQUIRED UNDER AS 08.13.185.]  2 

   * Sec. 3. AS 08.13.190(a) is amended to read: 3 

(a)  A person who practices barbering, hairdressing, hair braiding, esthetics, 4 

tattooing, permanent cosmetic coloring, or body piercing, or operates a shop, or 5 

operates a school of barbering, hairdressing, or esthetics, or teaches in a school of 6 

barbering, hairdressing, or esthetics, without a license, [TEMPORARY PERMIT,] 7 

temporary license under AS 08.01.062, or student permit and who is not exempt 8 

under AS 08.13.120 or 08.13.160(d) [UNDER AS 08.13.160(d)] is guilty of a class B 9 

misdemeanor.  10 

   * Sec. 4. AS 08.20.180(a) is amended to read: 11 

(a)  An applicant for an examination, reexamination, [ISSUANCE OF A 12 

TEMPORARY PERMIT UNDER AS 08.20.160, ISSUANCE OF A LOCUM 13 

TENENS PERMIT UNDER AS 08.20.163,] issuance of a license by credentials under 14 

AS 08.20.141, one-time issuance of a retired status license, or initial issuance or 15 

renewal of an active or inactive license shall pay a fee established under 16 

AS 08.01.065.  17 

   * Sec. 5. AS 08.36.100 is amended to read: 18 

Sec. 08.36.100. License required. Except as provided in AS 08.36.238 [AND 19 

08.36.254], a person may not practice, or attempt to practice, dentistry without a 20 

license.  21 

   * Sec. 6. AS 08.64.279 is amended to read: 22 

Sec. 08.64.279. Interview for permits. An applicant for an intern permit or [,] 23 

a resident permit [, OR A TEMPORARY PERMIT FOR LOCUM TENENS 24 

PRACTICE] may be interviewed in person by the board, a member of the board, the 25 

executive secretary of the board, or a person designated for that purpose by the board.  26 

   * Sec. 7. AS 08.84.010(b) is amended to read: 27 

(b)  The board shall control all matters pertaining to the licensing of physical 28 

therapists, physical therapy assistants, occupational therapists, and occupational 29 

therapy assistants and the practice of physical therapy and the practice of occupational 30 

therapy. The board shall  31 



   32-LS0120\B 

HB0015a -5- HB 15 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

(1)  pass upon the qualifications of applicants;  1 

(2)  provide for the examination of applicants;  2 

(3)  issue [TEMPORARY PERMITS AND] licenses to persons 3 

qualified under this chapter;  4 

(4)  suspend, revoke, or refuse to issue or renew a license under 5 

AS 08.84.120;  6 

(5)  keep a current register listing the name, business address, date, and 7 

number of the license of each person who is licensed to practice under this chapter;  8 

(6)  adopt regulations under AS 44.62 (Administrative Procedure Act) 9 

necessary to carry out the purposes of this chapter including regulations establishing 10 

qualifications for licensure and renewal of licensure under this chapter.  11 

   * Sec. 8. AS 08.84.150 is amended to read: 12 

Sec. 08.84.150. License required; exceptions. (a) It is unlawful for a person 13 

to practice physical therapy without being licensed under this chapter unless the 14 

person is  15 

(1)  a student in an accredited physical therapy program;  16 

(2)  a graduate of a foreign school of physical therapy fulfilling the 17 

internship requirement of AS 08.84.032, and then only unless under the continuous 18 

direction and immediate supervision of a physical therapist; or  19 

(3)  issued a temporary [LIMITED] permit under AS 08.01.062 20 

[AS 08.84.075].  21 

(b)  A person may not provide services that the person describes as 22 

occupational therapy without being licensed under this chapter unless the person is  23 

(1)  a student in an accredited occupational therapy program or in a 24 

supervised field work program;  25 

(2)  a graduate of a foreign school of occupational therapy fulfilling the 26 

internship requirement of AS 08.84.032, and then only unless under the continuous 27 

direction and immediate supervision of an occupational therapist;  28 

(3)  an occupational therapist or occupational therapy assistant 29 

employed by the United States government while in the discharge of official duties;  30 

(4)  granted a temporary [LIMITED] permit under AS 08.01.062 31 



   32-LS0120\B 

HB 15 -6- HB0015a 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

[AS 08.84.075];  1 

(5)  licensed under this title and uses occupational therapy skills in the 2 

practice of the profession for which the license is issued; or  3 

(6)  employed as a teacher or teacher's aide by an educational 4 

institution and is required to use occupational therapy skills during the course of 5 

employment, if  6 

(A)  the occupational therapy skills are used under a program 7 

implemented by the employer and developed by a licensed occupational 8 

therapist;  9 

(B)  the employer maintains direct supervision of the person's 10 

use of occupational therapy skills; and  11 

(C)  the person does not represent to  12 

(i)  be an occupational therapist or occupational therapy 13 

assistant; and  14 

(ii)  practice occupational therapy.  15 

   * Sec. 9. AS 08.98.120(a) is amended to read: 16 

(a)  A person may not practice veterinary medicine, surgery, or dentistry unless 17 

the person is licensed as a veterinarian under this chapter or has a temporary permit 18 

issued under AS 08.01.062 [AS 08.98.186], except that a person may perform 19 

functions authorized by  20 

(1)  regulation of the board if the person is licensed as a veterinary 21 

technician; or  22 

(2)  a permit issued under AS 08.02.050 if the person is employed by 23 

an agency that has a permit issued under AS 08.02.050.  24 

   * Sec. 10. AS 08.98.180 is amended to read: 25 

Sec. 08.98.180. Temporary license. A person who is granted a temporary 26 

license by the department under AS 08.01.062 may work only [MEETS THE 27 

REQUIREMENTS OF AS 08.98.165(a)(1), (4), AND (5) IS ENTITLED TO BE 28 

TEMPORARILY LICENSED AFTER APPLYING FOR EXAMINATION IF THE 29 

PERSON WORKS] under the supervision of a licensed veterinarian. [A LICENSE 30 

ISSUED UNDER THIS SECTION IS VALID UNTIL THE RESULTS OF THE 31 



   32-LS0120\B 

HB0015a -7- HB 15 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

EXAMINATIONS ARE PUBLISHED. A PERSON MAY NOT RECEIVE MORE 1 

THAN ONE TEMPORARY LICENSE. AN APPLICATION FOR A TEMPORARY 2 

LICENSE MUST BE SIGNED BY THE SUPERVISING VETERINARIAN AND 3 

ACCOMPANIED BY THE TEMPORARY LICENSE FEE REQUIRED UNDER 4 

AS 08.98.190.]  5 

   * Sec. 11. AS 14.20.015 is amended by adding a new subsection to read: 6 

(g)  The department shall issue a preliminary teacher certificate under this 7 

section to an active duty member of the armed forces of the United States or a spouse 8 

of an active duty member of the armed forces of the United States who meets the 9 

requirements of this section within 30 days after the department receives the person's 10 

complete application for the preliminary teacher certificate. 11 

   * Sec. 12. AS 08.01.063, 08.01.064(b), 08.01.064(c), 08.01.064(d); AS 08.11.020, 12 

08.11.025; AS 08.13.170; AS 08.15.030; AS 08.20.160, 08.20.163; AS 08.26.050; 13 

AS 08.36.254; AS 08.45.035; AS 08.63.130; AS 08.64.101(b)(2), 08.64.270, 08.64.275; 14 

AS 08.68.210; AS 08.70.130; AS 08.80.150, 08.80.155; AS 08.84.065, 08.84.075; 15 

AS 08.86.135, 08.86.166; AS 08.95.125; AS 08.98.186, 08.98.190(6), and 08.98.190(7) are 16 

repealed. 17 

   * Sec. 13. The uncodified law of the State of Alaska is amended by adding a new section to 18 

read: 19 

TRANSITION: REGULATIONS. The Department of Commerce, Community, and 20 

Economic Development may adopt regulations necessary to implement the changes made by 21 

this Act. The regulations take effect under AS 44.62 (Administrative Procedure Act), but not 22 

before the effective date of the law implemented by the regulation. 23 

   * Sec. 14. Section 13 of this Act takes effect immediately under AS 01.10.070(c). 24 

   * Sec. 15. Except as provided in sec. 14 of this Act, this Act takes effect January 1, 2022. 25 





 

(B): The Board is confident that any country or territory that doesn’t even license their dentists will not meet the 
requirements needed to get a license in Alaska. So, this pathway is likely a non-issue as it should be next to impossible for 
dentistry.  

(C): This is a more reasonable pathway and we understand the need for something like a “provisional license” in some 
cases. However, preliminary licensure exam results are now available within days and exam results are not at all what hold 
up the process. It is the professional background services we employ to collect all the documentation needed. Once it is 
collected the Dental Board votes online within 10 days. A “provisional license” could be added to chapter 36 somewhere 
as it could allow an applicant to work while going through the credentialing process. 

(D): The Board understands the Departments desire to expedite members of the military and their families into the 
workforce. However, the military does not have a dental school and in fact require their all dentists to have a current 
dental license in a US state or territory. Additionally, the Dental Board already uses 08.01.064(a)(1) when considering 
additional training received in the military for certain requirements.       

08.01.062(2-3): These are both good conditions to include and help qualify or disqualify potential applicants. The question 
is, who in the Department is responsible for gathering and collating all the information on an applicant from the Philippines 
applying under 08.01.062(A)(1)(ii)?  Are the Department’s investigators doing it? Is our licensing examiner who has little 
or no dental experience doing it? We have had 4 licensing examiners in 4 years. We now employ a dental background 
information gathering service just for this purpose.   

08.01.062(b): A professional background check should be added to the criminal history check. But again, who in the 
Department is willing and able to perform this function when dealing with a foreign country? And how does the 
Department decide when to grant a temporary license before results of the check are received? The Board visualizes a 
situation where the Department grants a license and then the Board has to take the time and expense to revoke it. It is 
always harder to take something away than to not grant it in the first place.  

08.01.062(c) and (e): So, at the Departments discretion a “dentist” authorized to extract wisdom teeth in Bolivia, may do 
the same in Alaska for up to 360 days before he decides to apply for a license with the Dental Board.  

08.01.062(g): The Board realizes fees must be set for this temporary license. We also realize our $100 courtesy license 
would disappear. For those dentists wanting to come to Alaska from another state to do pro bono work, they would need 
to apply through this new process and we highly doubt $100 will cover it. This could be a detrimental blow to those 
organizing charitable events. 

Section 6 0801.077(b): As long as the Dental Board remains able to summarily suspend the license of a dentist or hygienist 
who is a clear or imminent threat to the welfare of the public whether or not they have been charged, arrested, indicted 
or convicted, the Board is willing to work with the department to determine in regulations what disqualifying criminal 
convictions would apply to chapters 32 and 36.    

It remains unclear what roll the dental board will play in writing regulations for the temporary license, who in the 
Department decides if criteria are met and who has jurisdictional control over someone with a temporary license. For 
example, if there is demonstrated malpractice during the 180-360 day period and the temporary license holder skips town 
without ever applying for a permanent license, is the Dental Board responsible for paying to prosecute the case?  



 

From dentistry’s perspective, most of section 2 “Temporary license” in SB157 and HB216 are solutions looking for a 
problem. And most of the concern comes from the fact that qualifications and training to perform dentistry within a 
certain standard of care and in a safe manner, is not adequate in many parts of the world. 

 

Thank You for Your Consideration, 

 

David Nielson, DDS 
President, Alaska State Board of Dental Examiners 



 

HB0111a -1- HB 111 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

32-LS0480\A 
 
 

 
 
 

 HOUSE BILL NO. 111 
 

IN THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA 
 

THIRTY-SECOND LEGISLATURE - FIRST SESSION 
 
BY REPRESENTATIVES SPOHNHOLZ, Kreiss-Tomkins 
 
Introduced:  2/24/21 
Referred:   Labor and Commerce, Finance  
 
 

A BILL 
 

FOR AN ACT ENTITLED 
 
"An Act relating to the practice of dental hygiene; relating to advanced practice permits 1 

for dental hygienists; relating to dental assistants; prohibiting unfair discrimination 2 

under group health insurance against a dental hygienist who holds an advanced practice 3 

permit; relating to medical assistance for dental hygiene services; and providing for an 4 

effective date." 5 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA: 6 

   * Section 1. AS 08.32.110(e) is amended to read: 7 

(e)  This section does not prohibit a licensed dental hygienist  8 

(1)  with an endorsement issued under AS 08.32.085 from performing 9 

the activities authorized under AS 08.32.085;  10 

(2)  who holds an advanced practice permit issued by the board 11 

under AS 08.32.125 or has entered into a collaborative agreement approved by the 12 

board under AS 08.32.115 from performing the activities authorized under the permit 13 



   32-LS0480\A 

HB 111 -2- HB0111a 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

or collaborative agreement; or  1 

(3)  from performing a dental operation, procedure, or service a dentist 2 

may delegate to a dental assistant under AS 08.36.346.  3 

   * Sec. 2. AS 08.32 is amended by adding a new section to read: 4 

Sec. 08.32.125. Advanced practice permits. (a) The board may issue an 5 

advanced practice permit to a licensed dental hygienist with a minimum of 4,000 6 

documented hours of clinical experience. A licensed dental hygienist holding an 7 

advanced practice permit may 8 

(1)  promote oral health and provide disease prevention education and 9 

oral systemic health education;  10 

(2)  remove calcareous deposits, accretions, and stains from the 11 

surfaces of teeth;  12 

(3)  apply topical preventive or prophylactic agents, including silver 13 

diamine fluoride, fluoride varnishes, and pit and fissure sealants;  14 

(4)  polish and smooth restorations;  15 

(5)  remove marginal overhangs;  16 

(6)  perform preliminary charting and triage to formulate a dental 17 

hygiene assessment and dental hygiene treatment plan;  18 

(7)  expose and develop radiographs;  19 

(8)  use local periodontal therapeutic agents;  20 

(9)  perform nonsurgical periodontal therapy, with or without the 21 

administration of local anesthesia;  22 

(10)  screen for oral cancer; 23 

(11)  if certified by the board, administer local anesthesia;  24 

(12)  prescribe  25 

(A)  fluoride that is applied or provided to a patient; and 26 

(B)  chlorhexidine or a similar antibacterial rinse; and  27 

(13)  delegate dental operations and services to a dental assistant as 28 

provided in AS 08.36.346. 29 

(b)  A licensed dental hygienist holding an advanced practice permit may 30 

provide the services described in (a) of this section to a patient who is unable to 31 



   32-LS0480\A 

HB0111a -3- HB 111 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

receive dental treatment because of age, infirmity, or disability and is  1 

(1)  a resident in a senior center, including a hospital, long-term care 2 

facility, adult foster home, residential care facility, or adult congregate living facility; 3 

(2)  a resident in a health care facility, including a mental health 4 

residential program or facility for individuals with developmental or other disabilities; 5 

(3)  held in a local correctional facility for juveniles or adults;  6 

(4)  enrolled in a nursery school, day care program, vocational training 7 

facility, primary school, secondary school, private school, or public charter school; 8 

(5)  entitled to benefits under 42 U.S.C. 1786 (Special Supplemental 9 

Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children); 10 

(6)  homebound; or 11 

(7)  a resident of a dental health professional shortage area designated 12 

under 42 U.S.C. 254e. 13 

(c)  A licensed dental hygienist holding an advanced practice permit may 14 

provide the services described in (a) of this section to a patient described in (b) of this 15 

section without  16 

(1)  the physical presence, authorization, or supervision of a licensed 17 

dentist; 18 

(2)  a licensed dentist's examination of the patient. 19 

(d)  A licensed dental hygienist who provides services under an advanced 20 

practice permit shall maintain professional liability insurance and provide the patient, 21 

or the parent or legal guardian of the patient, with 22 

(1)  a written notice that the treatment provided will be limited to 23 

services permitted under (a) of this section; 24 

(2)  a written recommendation that the patient be examined by a 25 

licensed dentist for comprehensive oral health care services; and 26 

(3)  assistance in obtaining a referral to a licensed dentist for further 27 

dental planning and treatment, including a written description of methods for 28 

obtaining a referral and a list of licensed dentists in the patient's community or other 29 

resources for finding a licensed dentist. 30 

(e)  A licensed dental hygienist holding an advanced practice permit may 31 



   32-LS0480\A 

HB 111 -4- HB0111a 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

practice as an independent contractor.  1 

(f)  An advanced practice permit is valid until the expiration of the dental 2 

hygienist's license to practice. A licensed dental hygienist may renew an advanced 3 

practice permit at the time of license renewal under AS 08.32.071. 4 

   * Sec. 3. AS 08.32.160 is amended to read: 5 

Sec. 08.32.160. Grounds for discipline, suspension, or revocation of license. 6 

The board may revoke or suspend the license of a dental hygienist, or may reprimand, 7 

censure, or discipline a licensee, if, after a hearing, the board finds that the licensee  8 

(1)  used or knowingly cooperated in deceit, fraud, or intentional 9 

misrepresentation to obtain a license, certificate, or endorsement;  10 

(2)  engaged in deceit, fraud, or intentional misrepresentation in the 11 

course of providing or billing for professional services or engaging in professional 12 

activities;  13 

(3)  advertised professional services in a false or misleading manner;  14 

(4)  has been convicted of a felony or other crime that affects the 15 

licensee's ability to continue to practice competently and safely;  16 

(5)  failed to comply with this chapter, with a regulation adopted under 17 

this chapter or under AS 08.36, or with an order of the board;  18 

(6)  continued to practice after becoming unfit due to  19 

(A)  professional incompetence;  20 

(B)  addiction or dependence on alcohol or other drugs that 21 

impairs the licensee's ability to practice safely;  22 

(C)  physical or mental disability;  23 

(7)  engaged in lewd or immoral conduct in connection with the 24 

delivery of professional service to patients;  25 

(8)  except as permitted under an advanced practice permit under 26 

AS 08.32.125, performed clinical procedures without being under the supervision of a 27 

licensed dentist;  28 

(9)  did not conform to professional standards in delivering dental 29 

hygiene services to patients regardless of whether actual injury to the patient occurred; 30 

(10)  permitted a dental assistant employed by a dental hygienist or 31 



   32-LS0480\A 

HB0111a -5- HB 111 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

working under the supervision of a dental hygienist to perform a dental 1 

procedure in violation of AS 08.32.110 or AS 08.36.346; 2 

(11)  falsified or destroyed a patient or facility record, or failed to 3 

maintain a patient or facility record for at least seven years after the date the 4 

record was created.  5 

   * Sec. 4. AS 08.36.346 is amended by adding a new subsection to read: 6 

(c)  A dental hygienist holding an advanced practice permit issued under 7 

AS 08.32.125 may delegate to a dental assistant under a level of supervision specified 8 

by the board in regulations 9 

(1)  the exposure and development of radiographs;  10 

(2)  application of topical preventive agents or pit and fissure sealants; 11 

(3)  other tasks specified by the board in regulations. 12 

   * Sec. 5. AS 21.36.090(d) is amended to read: 13 

(d)  Except to the extent necessary to comply with AS 21.42.365 and 14 

AS 21.56, a person may not practice or permit unfair discrimination against a person 15 

who provides a service covered under a group health insurance policy that extends 16 

coverage on an expense incurred basis, or under a group service or indemnity type 17 

contract issued by a health maintenance organization or a nonprofit corporation, if the 18 

service is within the scope of the provider's occupational license. In this subsection, 19 

"provider" means a state licensed physician, physician assistant, dentist, osteopath, 20 

optometrist, chiropractor, advanced practice registered nurse, naturopath, physical 21 

therapist, occupational therapist, marital and family therapist, psychologist, 22 

psychological associate, licensed clinical social worker, licensed professional 23 

counselor, [OR] certified direct-entry midwife, or dental hygienist holding an 24 

advanced practice permit.  25 

   * Sec. 6. AS 47.07.030(b) is amended to read: 26 

(b)  In addition to the mandatory services specified in (a) of this section and the 27 

services provided under (d) of this section, the department may offer only the 28 

following optional services: case management services for traumatic or acquired brain 29 

injury; case management and nutrition services for pregnant women; personal care 30 

services in a recipient's home; emergency hospital services; long-term care 31 



   32-LS0480\A 

HB 111 -6- HB0111a 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

noninstitutional services; medical supplies and equipment; advanced practice 1 

registered nurse services; clinic services; rehabilitative services for children eligible 2 

for services under AS 47.07.063, substance abusers, and emotionally disturbed or 3 

chronically mentally ill adults; targeted case management services; inpatient 4 

psychiatric facility services for individuals 65 years of age or older and individuals 5 

under 21 years of age; psychologists' services; clinical social workers' services; marital 6 

and family therapy services; midwife services; prescribed drugs; physical therapy; 7 

occupational therapy; chiropractic services; low-dose mammography screening, as 8 

defined in AS 21.42.375(e); hospice care; treatment of speech, hearing, and language 9 

disorders; adult dental and dental hygiene services; prosthetic devices and 10 

eyeglasses; optometrists' services; intermediate care facility services, including 11 

intermediate care facility services for persons with intellectual and developmental 12 

disabilities; skilled nursing facility services for individuals under 21 years of age; and 13 

reasonable transportation to and from the point of medical care.  14 

   * Sec. 7. The uncodified law of the State of Alaska is amended by adding a new section to 15 

read: 16 

REGULATIONS. The Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic 17 

Development, the Department of Health and Social Services, and the Board of Dental 18 

Examiners may adopt regulations necessary to implement the changes made by this Act. The 19 

regulations take effect under AS 44.62 (Administrative Procedure Act), but not before the 20 

effective date of the law implemented by the regulations. 21 

   * Sec. 8. Section 7 of this Act takes effect immediately under AS 01.10.070(c). 22 

   * Sec. 9. Except as provided in sec. 8 of this Act, this Act takes effect January 1, 2022. 23 



 

HB0127a -1- HB 127 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

31-LS0836\A 
 
 

 
 
 

 HOUSE BILL NO. 127 
 

IN THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA 
 

THIRTY-FIRST LEGISLATURE - FIRST SESSION 
 
BY REPRESENTATIVE SPOHNHOLZ 
 
Introduced:  4/9/19 
Referred:    
 
 

A BILL 
 

FOR AN ACT ENTITLED 
 
"An Act relating to the practice of dental hygiene; establishing an advanced practice 1 

permit; prohibiting unfair discrimination under group health insurance against a dental 2 

hygienist who holds an advanced practice permit; relating to medical assistance for 3 

dental hygiene services; and providing for an effective date." 4 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA: 5 

   * Section 1. AS 08.32.110(e) is amended to read: 6 

(e)  This section does not prohibit a licensed dental hygienist  7 

(1)  with an endorsement issued under AS 08.32.085 from performing 8 

the activities authorized under AS 08.32.085;  9 

(2)  who holds an advanced practice permit issued by the board 10 

under AS 08.32.125 or has entered into a collaborative agreement approved by the 11 

board under AS 08.32.115 from performing the activities authorized under the permit 12 

or collaborative agreement; or  13 

(3)  from performing a dental operation, procedure, or service a dentist 14 



   31-LS0836\A 

HB 127 -2- HB0127a 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

may delegate to a dental assistant under AS 08.36.346.  1 

   * Sec. 2. AS 08.32 is amended by adding a new section to read: 2 

Sec. 08.32.125. Advanced practice permits. (a) The board may issue an 3 

advanced practice permit to a licensed dental hygienist with a minimum of 4,000 4 

documented hours of clinical experience. A licensed dental hygienist holding an 5 

advanced practice permit may perform one or more of the following:  6 

(1)  oral health promotion, disease prevention education, and oral 7 

systemic health education;  8 

(2)  removal of calcareous deposits, accretions, and stains from the 9 

surfaces of teeth;  10 

(3)  application of topical preventive or prophylactic agents, including 11 

silver diamine fluoride, fluoride varnishes, and pit and fissure sealants;  12 

(4)  polishing and smoothing restorations;  13 

(5)  removal of marginal overhangs;  14 

(6)  preliminary charting and triage to formulate a dental hygiene 15 

assessment and dental hygiene treatment plan;  16 

(7)  the exposure and development of radiographs;  17 

(8)  use of local periodontal therapeutic agents;  18 

(9)  nonsurgical periodontal therapy, with or without the administration 19 

of local anesthesia;  20 

(10)  screening for oral cancer; 21 

(11)  administration of local anesthesia; and 22 

(12)  writing prescriptions for  23 

(A)  fluoride that is applied or provided to a patient; and 24 

(B)  chlorhexidine or a similar antibacterial rinse. 25 

(b)  A licensed dental hygienist holding an advanced practice permit may 26 

provide the services described in (a) of this section to a patient who is unable to 27 

receive dental treatment because of age, infirmity, or disability and is  28 

(1)  a resident in a senior center, including a hospital, long-term care 29 

facility, adult foster home, residential care facility, or adult congregate living facility; 30 

(2)  a resident in a health care facility, including a mental health 31 



   31-LS0836\A 

HB0127a -3- HB 127 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

residential program or facility for individuals with developmental or other disabilities; 1 

(3)  held in a local correctional facility for juveniles or adults;  2 

(4)  enrolled in a nursery school, day care program, vocational training 3 

facility, primary school, secondary school, private school, or public charter school; 4 

(5)  entitled to benefits under 42 U.S.C. 1786 (Special Supplemental 5 

Food Program for Women, Infants, and Children); 6 

(6)  homebound; or 7 

(7)  a resident of a dental health professional shortage area designated 8 

under 42 U.S.C. 254e. 9 

(c)  A licensed dental hygienist holding an advanced practice permit may 10 

provide the services described in (a) of this section to a patient described in (b) of this 11 

section without  12 

(1)  the physical presence, authorization, or supervision of a licensed 13 

dentist; 14 

(2)  a licensed dentist's examination of the patient. 15 

(d)  A licensed dental hygienist who provides services under an advanced 16 

practice permit shall maintain professional liability insurance and provide the patient, 17 

or the parent or legal guardian of the patient, with 18 

(1)  a written notice that the treatment provided will be limited to 19 

services permitted under (a) of this section; 20 

(2)  a written recommendation that the patient be examined by a 21 

licensed dentist for comprehensive oral health care services; and 22 

(3)  assistance in obtaining a referral to a licensed dentist for further 23 

dental planning and treatment, including a written description of methods for 24 

obtaining a referral and a list of licensed dentists in the patient's community or other 25 

resources for finding a licensed dentist. 26 

(e)  A licensed dental hygienist holding an advanced practice permit may 27 

practice as an independent contractor.  28 

(f)  An advanced practice permit is valid until the expiration of the dental 29 

hygienist's license to practice. A licensed dental hygienist may renew an advanced 30 

practice permit at the time of license renewal under AS 08.32.071. 31 



   31-LS0836\A 

HB 127 -4- HB0127a 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

   * Sec. 3. AS 21.36.090(d) is amended to read: 1 

(d)  Except to the extent necessary to comply with AS 21.42.365 and 2 

AS 21.56, a person may not practice or permit unfair discrimination against a person 3 

who provides a service covered under a group health insurance policy that extends 4 

coverage on an expense incurred basis, or under a group service or indemnity type 5 

contract issued by a health maintenance organization or a nonprofit corporation, if the 6 

service is within the scope of the provider's occupational license. In this subsection, 7 

"provider" means a state licensed physician, physician assistant, dentist, osteopath, 8 

optometrist, chiropractor, advanced practice registered nurse, naturopath, physical 9 

therapist, occupational therapist, marital and family therapist, psychologist, 10 

psychological associate, licensed clinical social worker, licensed professional 11 

counselor, [OR] certified direct-entry midwife, or dental hygienist holding an 12 

advanced practice permit.  13 

   * Sec. 4. AS 47.07.030(b) is amended to read: 14 

(b)  In addition to the mandatory services specified in (a) of this section and the 15 

services provided under (d) of this section, the department may offer only the 16 

following optional services: case management services for traumatic or acquired brain 17 

injury; case management and nutrition services for pregnant women; personal care 18 

services in a recipient's home; emergency hospital services; long-term care 19 

noninstitutional services; medical supplies and equipment; advanced practice 20 

registered nurse services; clinic services; rehabilitative services for children eligible 21 

for services under AS 47.07.063, substance abusers, and emotionally disturbed or 22 

chronically mentally ill adults; targeted case management services; inpatient 23 

psychiatric facility services for individuals 65 years of age or older and individuals 24 

under 21 years of age; psychologists' services; clinical social workers' services; marital 25 

and family therapy services; midwife services; prescribed drugs; physical therapy; 26 

occupational therapy; chiropractic services; low-dose mammography screening, as 27 

defined in AS 21.42.375(e); hospice care; treatment of speech, hearing, and language 28 

disorders; adult dental and dental hygiene services; prosthetic devices and 29 

eyeglasses; optometrists' services; intermediate care facility services, including 30 

intermediate care facility services for persons with intellectual and developmental 31 



   31-LS0836\A 

HB0127a -5- HB 127 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

disabilities; skilled nursing facility services for individuals under 21 years of age; and 1 

reasonable transportation to and from the point of medical care.  2 

   * Sec. 5. The uncodified law of the State of Alaska is amended by adding a new section to 3 

read: 4 

REGULATIONS. The Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic 5 

Development and the Board of Dental Examiners may adopt regulations necessary to 6 

implement the changes made by this Act. The regulations take effect under AS 44.62 7 

(Administrative Procedure Act), but not before the effective date of the law implemented by 8 

the regulation. 9 

   * Sec. 6. Section 5 of this Act takes effect immediately under AS 01.10.070(c). 10 

   * Sec. 7. Except as provided in sec. 6 of this Act, this Act takes effect July 1, 2020. 11 







Chapter 246-16 WAC
STANDARDS OF PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT

Last Update: 11/30/15
WAC
246-16-010 Purpose of chapter.
246-16-020 Definitions.

SEXUAL MISCONDUCT
246-16-100 Sexual misconduct.

MANDATORY REPORTING
246-16-200 Mandatory reporting—Intent.
246-16-210 Mandatory reporting—Definitions.
246-16-220 Mandatory reporting—How and when to report.
246-16-230 Mandatory reporting—License holder self reports.
246-16-235 Mandatory reporting—License holder reporting other license holders.
246-16-240 Mandatory reporting—Reports by professional liability insurance carriers.
246-16-245 Mandatory reporting—Reports by health care institutions.
246-16-250 Mandatory reporting—Reports by health service contractors and disability insurers.
246-16-255 Mandatory reporting—Reports by professional review organizations.
246-16-260 Mandatory reporting—Reports by courts.
246-16-265 Mandatory reporting—Reports by state and federal agencies.
246-16-270 Mandatory reporting—Reports by employers of license holders.

SANCTIONS
246-16-800 Sanctions—General provisions.
246-16-810 Sanction schedule—Practice below standard of care.
246-16-820 Sanction schedule—Sexual misconduct or contact.
246-16-830 Sanction schedule—Abuse—Physical and emotional.
246-16-840 Sanction schedule—Diversion of controlled substances or legend drugs.
246-16-850 Sanction schedule—Substance abuse.
246-16-860 Sanction schedule—Criminal convictions.
246-16-890 Sanctions—Aggravating and mitigating factors.

WAC 246-16-010  Purpose of chapter.  The rules in this chapter 
define certain acts of unprofessional conduct for health care provid-
ers under the jurisdiction of the secretary of the department of 
health as provided in RCW 18.130.040 (2)(a) including persons licensed 
or certified by the secretary under chapter 18.73 RCW or RCW 
18.71.205. The rules also provide for sanctions. The secretary may 
adopt rules applicable to specific professions under RCW 
18.130.040(2). These rules also serve as model rules for the disci-
plining authorities listed in RCW 18.130.040 (2)(b).
[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.050 (1), (12) and 18.130.180. WSR 
06-18-045, § 246-16-010, filed 8/30/06, effective 9/30/06.]

WAC 246-16-020  Definitions.  (1) "Health care information" means 
any information, whether oral or recorded in any form or medium that 
identifies or can readily be associated with the identity of, and re-
lates to the health care of, a patient or client.

(2) "Health care provider" means an individual applying for a 
credential or credentialed in a profession listed in RCW 18.130.040 
(2)(a).

(3) "Key party" means immediate family members and others who 
would be reasonably expected to play a significant role in the health 
care decisions of the patient or client and includes, but is not limi-
ted to, the spouse, domestic partner, sibling, parent, child, guardian 
and person authorized to make health care decisions of the patient or 
client.

(4) "Legitimate health care purpose" means activities for exami-
nation, diagnosis, treatment, and personal care of patients or cli-
ents, including palliative care, as consistent with community stand-

Certified on 10/25/2019 Page 1



ards of practice for the profession. The activity must be within the 
scope of practice of the health care provider.

(5) "Patient" or "client" means an individual who receives health 
care from a health care provider.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.050 (1), (12) and 18.130.180. WSR 
06-18-045, § 246-16-020, filed 8/30/06, effective 9/30/06.]

SEXUAL MISCONDUCT

WAC 246-16-100  Sexual misconduct.  (1) A health care provider 
shall not engage, or attempt to engage, in sexual misconduct with a 
current patient, client, or key party, inside or outside the health 
care setting. Sexual misconduct shall constitute grounds for discipli-
nary action. Sexual misconduct includes but is not limited to:

(a) Sexual intercourse;
(b) Touching the breasts, genitals, anus or any sexualized body 

part except as consistent with accepted community standards of prac-
tice for examination, diagnosis and treatment and within the health 
care practitioner's scope of practice;

(c) Rubbing against a patient or client or key party for sexual 
gratification;

(d) Kissing;
(e) Hugging, touching, fondling or caressing of a romantic or 

sexual nature;
(f) Examination of or touching genitals without using gloves;
(g) Not allowing a patient or client privacy to dress or undress 

except as may be necessary in emergencies or custodial situations;
(h) Not providing the patient or client a gown or draping except 

as may be necessary in emergencies;
(i) Dressing or undressing in the presence of the patient, client 

or key party;
(j) Removing patient or client's clothing or gown or draping 

without consent, emergent medical necessity or being in a custodial 
setting;

(k) Encouraging masturbation or other sex act in the presence of 
the health care provider;

(l) Masturbation or other sex act by the health care provider in 
the presence of the patient, client or key party;

(m) Suggesting or discussing the possibility of a dating, sexual 
or romantic relationship after the professional relationship ends;

(n) Terminating a professional relationship for the purpose of 
dating or pursuing a romantic or sexual relationship;

(o) Soliciting a date with a patient, client or key party;
(p) Discussing the sexual history, preferences or fantasies of 

the health care provider;
(q) Any behavior, gestures, or expressions that may reasonably be 

interpreted as seductive or sexual;
(r) Making statements regarding the patient, client or key par-

ty's body, appearance, sexual history, or sexual orientation other 
than for legitimate health care purposes;

(s) Sexually demeaning behavior including any verbal or physical 
contact which may reasonably be interpreted as demeaning, humiliating, 
embarrassing, threatening or harming a patient, client or key party;

Certified on 10/25/2019 Page 2



(t) Photographing or filming the body or any body part or pose of 
a patient, client, or key party, other than for legitimate health care 
purposes; and

(u) Showing a patient, client or key party sexually explicit pho-
tographs, other than for legitimate health care purposes.

(2) Sexual misconduct also includes sexual contact with any per-
son involving force, intimidation, or lack of consent; or a conviction 
of a sex offense as defined in RCW 9.94A.030.

(3) A health care provider shall not:
(a) Offer to provide health care services in exchange for sexual 

favors;
(b) Use health care information to contact the patient, client or 

key party for the purpose of engaging in sexual misconduct;
(c) Use health care information or access to health care informa-

tion to meet or attempt to meet the health care provider's sexual 
needs.

(4) A health care provider shall not engage, or attempt to en-
gage, in the activities listed in subsection (1) of this section with 
a former patient, client or key party within two years after the pro-
vider-patient/client relationship ends.

(5) After the two-year period of time described in subsection (4) 
of this section, a health care provider shall not engage, or attempt 
to engage, in the activities listed in subsection (1) of this section 
if:

(a) There is a significant likelihood that the patient, client or 
key party will seek or require additional services from the health 
care provider; or

(b) There is an imbalance of power, influence, opportunity and/or 
special knowledge of the professional relationship.

(6) When evaluating whether a health care provider is prohibited 
from engaging, or attempting to engage, in sexual misconduct, the sec-
retary will consider factors, including but not limited to:

(a) Documentation of a formal termination and the circumstances 
of termination of the provider-patient relationship;

(b) Transfer of care to another health care provider;
(c) Duration of the provider-patient relationship;
(d) Amount of time that has passed since the last health care 

services to the patient or client;
(e) Communication between the health care provider and the pa-

tient or client between the last health care services rendered and 
commencement of the personal relationship;

(f) Extent to which the patient's or client's personal or private 
information was shared with the health care provider;

(g) Nature of the patient or client's health condition during and 
since the professional relationship;

(h) The patient or client's emotional dependence and vulnerabili-
ty; and

(i) Normal revisit cycle for the profession and service.
(7) Patient, client or key party initiation or consent does not 

excuse or negate the health care provider's responsibility.
(8) These rules do not prohibit:
(a) Providing health care services in case of emergency where the 

services cannot or will not be provided by another health care provid-
er;

(b) Contact that is necessary for a legitimate health care pur-
pose and that meets the standard of care appropriate to that profes-
sion; or

Certified on 10/25/2019 Page 3



(c) Providing health care services for a legitimate health care 
purpose to a person who is in a preexisting, established personal re-
lationship with the health care provider where there is no evidence 
of, or potential for, exploiting the patient or client.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.050, 18.130.062, and Executive Order 
06-03. WSR 15-24-087, § 246-16-100, filed 11/30/15, effective 
12/31/15. Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.050 (1), (12) and 
18.130.180. WSR 06-18-045, § 246-16-100, filed 8/30/06, effective 
9/30/06.]

MANDATORY REPORTING

WAC 246-16-200  Mandatory reporting—Intent.  These mandatory re-
porting rules require certain reports about license holders and are 
intended to address patient safety. These rules are not intended to 
limit reports from any person who has a concern about a license hold-
er's conduct or ability to practice safely.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.070 and 18.130.060. WSR 08-08-066, § 
246-16-200, filed 3/31/08, effective 5/1/08.]

WAC 246-16-210  Mandatory reporting—Definitions.  (1) "Approved 
impaired practitioner or voluntary substance abuse program" means a 
program authorized by RCW 18.130.175 and approved by a disciplining 
authority listed in RCW 18.130.040.

(2) "Conviction" means a court has decided a person is guilty of 
any gross misdemeanor or felony. It includes any guilty or no contest 
plea and all decisions with a deferred or suspended sentence.

(3) "Determination or finding" means a final decision by an enti-
ty required or requested to report under this chapter. This applies 
even if no adverse action or sanction has been imposed or if the li-
cense holder is appealing the decision.

(4) "License holder" means a person holding a credential in a 
profession regulated by a disciplining authority listed in RCW 
18.130.040(2).

(5) "Unable to practice with reasonable skill and safety due to a 
mental or physical condition" means a license holder who:

(a) A court has declared to be incompetent or mentally ill; or
(b) Is not successfully managing a mental or physical condition 

and as a result poses a risk to patient safety.
(6) "Unprofessional conduct" means the acts, conduct, or condi-

tions described in RCW 18.130.180.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.070 and 18.130.060. WSR 08-08-066, § 
246-16-210, filed 3/31/08, effective 5/1/08.]

WAC 246-16-220  Mandatory reporting—How and when to report.  (1) 
Reports are submitted to the department of health. The department will 
give the report to the appropriate disciplining authority for review, 
possible investigation, and further action.

Certified on 10/25/2019 Page 4



(a) When a patient has been harmed, a report to the department is 
required. A report to one of the approved impaired practitioner or 
voluntary substance abuse programs is not a substitute for reporting 
to the department.

(b) When there is no patient harm, reports of inability to prac-
tice with reasonable skill and safety due to a mental or physical con-
dition may be submitted to one of the approved impaired practitioner 
or voluntary substance abuse programs or to the department. Reports of 
unprofessional conduct are submitted to the department.

(c) Reports to a national practitioner data bank do not meet the 
requirement of this section.

(2) The report must include enough information to enable the dis-
ciplining authority to assess the report. If these details are known, 
the report should include:

(a) The name, address, and telephone number of the person making 
the report.

(b) The name, address, and telephone number(s) of the license 
holder being reported.

(c) Identification of any patient or client who was harmed or 
placed at risk.

(d) A brief description or summary of the facts that caused the 
report, including dates.

(e) If court action is involved, the name of the court, the date 
of filing, and the docket number.

(f) Any other information that helps explain the situation.
(3) Reports must be submitted no later than thirty calendar days 

after the reporting person has actual knowledge of the information 
that must be reported.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.070 and 18.130.060. WSR 08-08-066, § 
246-16-220, filed 3/31/08, effective 5/1/08.]

WAC 246-16-230  Mandatory reporting—License holder self reports. 
Each license holder must self report:

(1) Any conviction, determination, or finding that he or she has 
committed unprofessional conduct; or

(2) Information that he or she is unable to practice with reason-
able skill and safety due to a mental or physical condition; or

(3) Any disqualification from participation in the federal medi-
care or medicaid program.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.070 and 18.130.060. WSR 08-08-066, § 
246-16-230, filed 3/31/08, effective 5/1/08.]

WAC 246-16-235  Mandatory reporting—License holder reporting 
other license holders.  A license holder must report another license 
holder in some circumstances.

(1) The reporting license holder must submit a report when he or 
she has actual knowledge of:

(a) Any conviction, determination, or finding that another li-
cense holder has committed an act that constitutes unprofessional con-
duct; or

Certified on 10/25/2019 Page 5



(b) That another license holder may not be able to practice his 
or her profession with reasonable skill and safety due to a mental or 
physical condition.

(2) The license holder does not have to report when he or she is:
(a) A member of a professional review organization as provided in 

WAC 246-16-255;
(b) Providing health care to the other license holder and the 

other license holder does not pose a clear and present danger to pa-
tients or clients; or

(c) Part of a federally funded substance abuse program or ap-
proved impaired practitioner or voluntary substance abuse program and 
the other license holder is participating in treatment and does not 
pose a clear and present danger to patients or clients.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.070 and 18.130.060. WSR 08-08-066, § 
246-16-235, filed 3/31/08, effective 5/1/08.]

WAC 246-16-240  Mandatory reporting—Reports by professional lia-
bility insurance carriers.  Every institution, corporation or organi-
zation providing professional liability insurance to a license holder 
must report:

(1) Any malpractice settlement, award, or payment in excess of 
twenty thousand dollars that results from a claim or action for dam-
ages allegedly caused by a license holder's incompetence or negligence 
in the practice of the profession.

(2) Award, settlement, or payment of three or more claims during 
a twelve-month period that result from claims or actions for damages 
allegedly caused by the license holder's incompetence or negligence in 
the practice of the profession.

(3) Reports made according to RCW 18.57.245 or 18.71.350 meet the 
requirement.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.070 and 18.130.060. WSR 08-08-066, § 
246-16-240, filed 3/31/08, effective 5/1/08.]

WAC 246-16-245  Mandatory reporting—Reports by health care in-
stitutions.  (1) This section applies to:

(a) Hospitals and specialty hospital defined in chapter 70.41 
RCW;

(b) Ambulatory surgery facilities defined in chapter 70.230 RCW;
(c) Childbirth centers defined in chapter 18.46 RCW;
(d) Nursing homes defined in chapter 18.51 RCW;
(e) Chemical dependency treatment programs defined in chapter 

70.96A RCW;
(f) Drug treatment agencies defined in chapter 69.54 RCW; and
(g) Public and private mental health treatment agencies defined 

in RCW 71.05.020 and 71.24.025.
(2) The chief administrator or executive officer or designee of 

these institutions must report when:
(a) A license holder's services are terminated or restricted be-

cause a license holder has harmed or placed at unreasonable risk of 
harm a patient or client; or

(b) A license holder poses an unreasonable risk of harm to pa-
tients or clients due to a mental or physical condition.

Certified on 10/25/2019 Page 6



(3) Reports made by a hospital according to RCW 70.41.210 meet 
the requirement.

(4) Commencing July 1, 2009, reports made by an ambulatory surgi-
cal center according to RCW 70.230.110 meet the requirement.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.070 and 18.130.060. WSR 08-08-066, § 
246-16-245, filed 3/31/08, effective 5/1/08.]

WAC 246-16-250  Mandatory reporting—Reports by health service 
contractors and disability insurers.  The executive officer of health 
care service contractors and disability insurers licensed under chap-
ters 48.20, 48.21, 48.21A, and 48.44 RCW must report when the entity 
has made a determination or finding that a license holder has engaged 
in billing fraud.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.070 and 18.130.060. WSR 08-08-066, § 
246-16-250, filed 3/31/08, effective 5/1/08.]

WAC 246-16-255  Mandatory reporting—Reports by professional re-
view organizations.  (1) This section applies to every peer review 
committee, quality improvement committee, or other similarly designa-
ted professional review organization operating in the state of Wash-
ington.

(2) Unless prohibited by state or federal law, the professional 
review organization must report:

(a) When it makes a determination or finding that a license hold-
er has caused harm to a patient or placed a patient at unreasonable 
risk of harm; and

(b) When it has actual knowledge that the license holder poses an 
unreasonable risk of harm due to a mental or physical condition.

(3) Professional review organizations and individual license 
holders participating in a professional review organization do not 
need to report during the investigative phase of the professional re-
view organization's operation if the organization completes the inves-
tigation in a timely manner.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.070 and 18.130.060. WSR 08-08-066, § 
246-16-255, filed 3/31/08, effective 5/1/08.]

WAC 246-16-260  Mandatory reporting—Reports by courts.  The de-
partment requests that the clerks of trial courts in Washington report 
professional malpractice judgments and all convictions against a li-
cense holder.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.070 and 18.130.060. WSR 08-08-066, § 
246-16-260, filed 3/31/08, effective 5/1/08.]

WAC 246-16-265  Mandatory reporting—Reports by state and federal 
agencies.  The department requests that any state or federal program 
employing a license holder in Washington reports:

(1) When it determines a license holder has harmed or placed at 
unreasonable risk of harm a patient or client; and

Certified on 10/25/2019 Page 7



(2) When it has actual knowledge that the license holder poses an 
unreasonable risk of harm due to a mental or physical condition.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.070 and 18.130.060. WSR 08-08-066, § 
246-16-265, filed 3/31/08, effective 5/1/08.]

WAC 246-16-270  Mandatory reporting—Reports by employers of li-
cense holders.  (1) Every license holder, corporation, organization, 
health care facility, and state and local governmental agency that em-
ploys a license holder shall report to the department of health when 
the employed license holder's services have been terminated or re-
stricted based on a final determination or finding that the license 
holder:

(a) Has committed an act or acts that may constitute unprofes-
sional conduct; or

(b) May not be able to practice his or her profession with rea-
sonable skill and safety due to a mental or physical condition.

(2) Reports under this section must be submitted to the depart-
ment of health as soon as possible but no later than twenty days after 
a final determination or finding is made. The report should contain 
the information described in WAC 246-16-220(2).

(3) Reports made by a hospital according to RCW 70.41.210 and re-
ports by ambulatory surgical facilities according to RCW 70.230.120 
meet the requirement of this section.

(4) If a license holder fails to submit a report required by this 
section, a civil penalty of up to five hundred dollars may be imposed 
and the disciplining authority may take action against the license 
holder for unprofessional conduct.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.080. WSR 09-04-050, § 246-16-270, 
filed 1/30/09, effective 3/2/09.]

SANCTIONS

WAC 246-16-800  Sanctions—General provisions.  (1) Applying 
these rules.

(a) The disciplining authorities listed in RCW 18.130.040(2) will 
apply these rules to determine sanctions imposed for unprofessional 
conduct by a license holder in any active, inactive, or expired sta-
tus. The rules do not apply to applicants.

(b) The disciplining authorities will apply the rules in:
(i) Orders under RCW 18.130.110 or 18.130.160; and
(ii) Stipulations to informal disposition under RCW 18.130.172.
(c) Sanctions will begin on the effective date of the order.
(2) Selecting sanctions.
(a) The disciplining authority will select sanctions to protect 

the public and, if possible, rehabilitate the license holder.
(b) The disciplining authority may impose the full range of sanc-

tions listed in RCW 18.130.160 for orders and RCW 18.130.172 for stip-
ulations to informal dispositions.

(i) Suspension or revocation will be imposed when the license 
holder cannot practice with reasonable skill or safety.

Certified on 10/25/2019 Page 8



(ii) Permanent revocation may be imposed when the disciplining 
authority finds the license holder can never be rehabilitated or can 
never regain the ability to practice safely.

(iii) Surrender of a credential may be imposed when the license 
holder is at the end of his or her effective practice and surrender 
alone is enough to protect the public. The license holder must agree 
to retire and not resume practice.

(iv) Indefinite suspension may be imposed in default and waiver 
of hearing orders. If indefinite suspension is not imposed in a de-
fault or waiver of hearing order, the disciplining authority shall im-
pose sanctions determined according to these rules.

(v) "Oversight" means a period of time during which respondent 
must engage in on-going affirmative conduct intended to encourage re-
habilitation and ensure public safety. It also includes active compli-
ance monitoring by the disciplining authority. The passage of time 
without additional complaints or violations, with or without payment 
of a fine or costs, is not, by itself, oversight.

(c) The disciplining authority may deviate from the sanction 
schedules in these rules if the schedule does not adequately address 
the facts in a case. The disciplining authority will acknowledge the 
deviation and state its reasons for deviating from the sanction sched-
ules in the order or stipulation to informal disposition.

(d) If the unprofessional conduct is not described in a schedule, 
the disciplining authority will use its judgment to determine appro-
priate sanctions. The disciplining authority will state in the order 
or stipulation to informal disposition that no sanction schedule ap-
plies.

(3) Using sanction schedules.
(a) Step 1: The findings of fact in an order or the allegations 

in an informal disposition describe the unprofessional conduct. The 
disciplining authority uses the unprofessional conduct described to 
select the appropriate sanction schedule contained in WAC 246-16-810 
through 246-16-860.

(i) If the act of unprofessional conduct falls in more than one 
sanction schedule, the greater sanction is imposed.

(ii) If different acts of unprofessional conduct fall in the same 
sanction schedule, the highest sanction is imposed and the other acts 
of unprofessional conduct are considered aggravating factors.

(b) Step 2: The disciplining authority identifies the severity of 
the unprofessional conduct and identifies a tier using the sanction 
schedule tier descriptions.

(c) Step 3: The disciplining authority identifies aggravating or 
mitigating factors using the list in WAC 246-16-890. The disciplining 
authority describes the factors in the order or stipulation to infor-
mal disposition.

(d) Step 4: The disciplining authority selects sanctions within 
the identified tier. The starting point for duration of the sanctions 
is the middle of the tier range.

(i) Aggravating factors move the appropriate sanctions towards 
the maximum end of the tier range.

(ii) Mitigating factors move the appropriate sanctions towards 
the minimum end of the tier range.

(iii) Mitigating or aggravating factors may result in determina-
tion of a sanction outside the range in the tier. The disciplining au-
thority will state its reasons for deviating from the tier range in 
the sanction schedule in the order or stipulation to informal disposi-
tion. The disciplining authority has complied with these rules if it 

Certified on 10/25/2019 Page 9



acknowledges the deviation and states its reasons for deviating from 
the sanction schedules in the order or stipulation to informal dispo-
sition.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.390. WSR 09-15-190, § 246-16-800, 
filed 7/22/09, effective 8/22/09.]

WAC 246-16-810  Sanction schedule—Practice below standard of 
care.

 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.390. WSR 09-15-190, § 246-16-810, 
filed 7/22/09, effective 8/22/09.]

WAC 246-16-820  Sanction schedule—Sexual misconduct or contact.

Certified on 10/25/2019 Page 10



 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.390. WSR 09-15-190, § 246-16-820, 
filed 7/22/09, effective 8/22/09.]

WAC 246-16-830  Sanction schedule—Abuse—Physical and emotional.

Certified on 10/25/2019 Page 11



 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.390. WSR 09-15-190, § 246-16-830, 
filed 7/22/09, effective 8/22/09.]

WAC 246-16-840  Sanction schedule—Diversion of controlled sub-
stances or legend drugs.

Certified on 10/25/2019 Page 12



 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.390. WSR 09-15-190, § 246-16-840, 
filed 7/22/09, effective 8/22/09.]

WAC 246-16-850  Sanction schedule—Substance abuse.

Certified on 10/25/2019 Page 13



 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.390. WSR 09-15-190, § 246-16-850, 
filed 7/22/09, effective 8/22/09.]

WAC 246-16-860  Sanction schedule—Criminal convictions.

Certified on 10/25/2019 Page 14



 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.390. WSR 09-15-190, § 246-16-860, 
filed 7/22/09, effective 8/22/09.]

WAC 246-16-890  Sanctions—Aggravating and mitigating factors. 
The following nonexclusive list identifies factors that may mitigate 
or aggravate the sanctions that should be imposed in an order or stip-
ulation to informal disposition.

(1) Factors related to the unprofessional conduct:
(a) Gravity of the unprofessional conduct;
(b) Age, capacity and/or vulnerability of the patient, client or 

victim;
(c) Number or frequency of the acts of unprofessional conduct;
(d) Injury caused by the unprofessional conduct;
(e) Potential for injury to be caused by the unprofessional con-

duct;
(f) Degree of responsibility for the outcome;
(g) Abuse of trust;
(h) Intentional or inadvertent act(s);
(i) Motivation is criminal, immoral, dishonest or for personal 

gain;
(j) Length of time since the unprofessional conduct occurred.
(2) Factors related to the license holder:
(a) Experience in practice;
(b) Past disciplinary record;
(c) Previous character;

Certified on 10/25/2019 Page 15



(d) Mental and/or physical health;
(e) Personal circumstances;
(f) Personal problems having a nexus with the unprofessional con-

duct.
(3) Factors related to the disciplinary process:
(a) Admission of key facts;
(b) Full and free disclosure to the disciplining authority;
(c) Voluntary restitution or other remedial action;
(d) Bad faith obstruction of the investigation or discipline 

process or proceedings;
(e) False evidence, statements or deceptive practices during the 

investigation or discipline process or proceedings;
(f) Remorse or awareness that the conduct was wrong;
(g) Impact on the patient, client, or victim.
(4) General factors:
(a) License holder's knowledge, intent, and degree of responsi-

bility;
(b) Presence or pattern of other violations;
(c) Present moral fitness of the license holder;
(d) Potential for successful rehabilitation;
(e) Present competence to practice;
(f) Dishonest or selfish motives;
(g) Illegal conduct;
(h) Heinousness of the unprofessional conduct;
(i) Ill repute upon the profession;
(j) Isolated incident unlikely to reoccur.

[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.130.390. WSR 09-15-190, § 246-16-890, 
filed 7/22/09, effective 8/22/09.]

Certified on 10/25/2019 Page 16



 
 
 
 

Old Business 



 
 
 
 

New Business 



 

SB0067A -1- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

32-GS1603\A 
 
 

 
 
 

 SENATE BILL NO. 67 
 

IN THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA 
 

THIRTY-SECOND LEGISLATURE - FIRST SESSION 
 
BY THE SENATE RULES COMMITTEE BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR 
 
Introduced:  2/3/21 
Referred:  Health & Social Services, Labor & Commerce  
 
 

A BILL 
 

FOR AN ACT ENTITLED 
 
"An Act relating to the licensure of nursing professionals; relating to a multistate nurse 1 

licensure compact; and providing for an effective date." 2 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA: 3 

   * Section 1.  AS 08.02.010(a) is amended to read: 4 

(a)  An acupuncturist licensed under AS 08.06, an audiologist or speech- 5 

language pathologist licensed under AS 08.11, a behavior analyst licensed under 6 

AS 08.15, a person licensed in the state as a chiropractor under AS 08.20, a 7 

professional counselor licensed under AS 08.29, a dentist under AS 08.36, a dietitian 8 

or nutritionist licensed under AS 08.38, a massage therapist licensed under AS 08.61, 9 

a marital and family therapist licensed under AS 08.63, a medical practitioner or 10 

osteopath under AS 08.64, a direct-entry midwife certified under AS 08.65, a 11 

registered nurse licensed under AS 08.68 or AS 08.69, or advanced practice 12 

registered nurse under AS 08.68, an optometrist under AS 08.72, a licensed 13 

pharmacist under AS 08.80, a physical therapist or occupational therapist licensed 14 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -2- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

under AS 08.84, a psychologist under AS 08.86, or a clinical social worker licensed 1 

under AS 08.95, shall use as professional identification appropriate letters or a title 2 

after that person's name that represents the person's specific field of practice. The 3 

letters or title shall appear on all signs, stationery, or other advertising in which the 4 

person offers or displays personal professional services to the public. In addition, a 5 

person engaged in the practice of medicine or osteopathy as defined in AS 08.64.380, 6 

or a person engaged in any manner in the healing arts who diagnoses, treats, tests, or 7 

counsels other persons in relation to human health or disease and uses the letters 8 

"M.D." or the title "doctor" or "physician" or another title that tends to show that the 9 

person is willing or qualified to diagnose, treat, test, or counsel another person, shall 10 

clarify the letters or title by adding the appropriate specialist designation, if any, such 11 

as "dermatologist," "radiologist," "audiologist," "naturopath," or the like. 12 

   * Sec. 2.  AS 08.11.120(b) is amended to read: 13 

(b)  Notwithstanding the provisions of this chapter, 14 

(1)  a nurse licensed under AS 08.68 or AS 08.69 may perform hearing 15 

sensitivity evaluations; 16 

(2)  an individual licensed as a hearing aid dealer under AS 08.55 may 17 

deal in hearing aids; 18 

(3)  an individual holding a class A certificate issued by the Conference 19 

of Executives of American Schools of the Deaf may teach the hearing impaired; 20 

(4)  an individual may engage in the testing of hearing as part of a 21 

hearing conservation program that complies with the regulations of the Occupational 22 

Safety and Health Administration of the federal government if the individual is 23 

certified to do the testing by a state or federal agency acceptable to the Occupational 24 

Safety and Health Administration; 25 

(5)  an individual may perform hearing screening under AS 47.20.310 26 

if authorized to do so under a protocol adopted under AS 47.20.310(e) by the 27 

Department of Health and Social Services. 28 

   * Sec. 3.  AS 08.68.100 is amended to read: 29 

Sec. 08.68.100. Duties and powers of board. (a) The board shall 30 

(1)  adopt regulations necessary to implement this chapter and 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB0067A -3- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

AS 08.69, including regulations 1 

(A)  pertaining to practice as an advanced practice registered 2 

nurse, including requirements for an advanced practice registered nurse to 3 

practice as a certified registered nurse anesthetist, certified clinical nurse 4 

specialist, certified nurse practitioner, or certified nurse midwife; regulations 5 

for an advanced practice registered nurse who holds a valid federal Drug 6 

Enforcement Administration registration number must address training in pain 7 

management and opioid use and addiction; 8 

(B)  necessary to implement AS 08.68.331 — 08.68.336 9 

relating to certified nurse aides in order to protect the health, safety, and 10 

welfare of clients served by nurse aides; 11 

(C)  pertaining to retired nurse status; [AND] 12 

(D)  establishing criteria for approval of practical nurse 13 

education programs that are not accredited by a national nursing accrediting 14 

body; 15 

(2)  approve curricula and adopt standards for basic education programs 16 

that prepare persons for licensing under AS 08.69 and this chapter [AS 08.68.190]; 17 

(3)  provide for surveys of the basic nursing education programs in the 18 

state at the times it considers necessary; 19 

(4)  approve education programs that meet the requirements of this 20 

chapter and of the board, and deny, revoke, or suspend approval of education 21 

programs for failure to meet the requirements; 22 

(5)  examine, license, and renew the licenses of [QUALIFIED] 23 

applicants under this chapter and for the multistate licenses issued under 24 

AS 08.69; 25 

(6)  prescribe requirements for competence before a former registered, 26 

advanced practice registered, or [LICENSED] practical nurse licensed under this 27 

chapter may resume the practice of nursing [UNDER THIS CHAPTER]; 28 

(7)  define by regulation the qualifications and duties of the executive 29 

administrator and delegate authority to the executive administrator that is necessary to 30 

conduct board business and to comply with AS 08.69 and this chapter; 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -4- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

(8)  develop reasonable and uniform standards for nursing practice; 1 

(9)  publish advisory opinions regarding whether nursing practice 2 

procedures or policies comply with acceptable standards of nursing practice as defined 3 

under this chapter; 4 

(10)  require applicants under AS 08.69 and this chapter to submit 5 

fingerprints and the fees required by the Department of Public Safety under 6 

AS 12.62.160 for criminal justice information and a national criminal history record 7 

check; the department shall submit the fingerprints and fees to the Department of 8 

Public Safety for a report of criminal justice information under AS 12.62 and a 9 

national criminal history record check under AS 12.62.400; 10 

(11)  require that a licensed advanced practice registered nurse who has 11 

a federal Drug Enforcement Administration registration number register with the 12 

controlled substance prescription database under AS 17.30.200(n); 13 

(12)  appoint the executive director of the board of nursing to serve 14 

as the Interstate Commission Nurse Licensure Compact Administrator. 15 

(b)  The board may 16 

(1)  conduct hearings upon charges of alleged violations of AS 08.69, 17 

this chapter, or regulations adopted under it; 18 

(2)  invoke, or request the department to invoke, disciplinary action 19 

against a license issued under this chapter or a multistate license issued by the 20 

board consistent with the provisions of this chapter and AS 08.69 [LICENSEE]; 21 

(3)  prescribe requirements for competence to continue practice. 22 

   * Sec. 4.  AS 08.68.140 is amended to read:   23 

Sec. 08.68.140. Applicability of Administrative Procedure Act. Except as 24 

specified in AS 08.68.333(f) and AS 08.69, the board shall comply with AS 44.62 25 

(Administrative Procedure Act). 26 

   * Sec. 5.  AS 08.68.160 is amended to read: 27 

Sec. 08.68.160. License required. A person practicing or offering to practice 28 

as a registered [, ADVANCED PRACTICE REGISTERED,] or practical nurse 29 

[NURSING] in the state shall submit evidence of qualification to practice and shall be 30 

licensed under this chapter or AS 08.69. A person practicing or offering to practice 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB0067A -5- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

as an advanced practice registered nurse shall submit evidence of qualification to 1 

practice and shall be licensed under this chapter. 2 

   * Sec. 6.  AS 08.68.170 is amended to read: 3 

Sec. 08.68.170. Qualifications of registered or practical nurse applicants. 4 

(a) An applicant for a license to practice registered nursing may obtain a license 5 

under this chapter or a multistate license that meets the requirements of this 6 

chapter and AS 08.69. An applicant for a license to practice registered nursing 7 

under this chapter shall submit to the board, on forms and in the manner prescribed 8 

by the board, written evidence, verified by oath, that the applicant has successfully 9 

completed a registered nurse education program accredited by a national nursing 10 

accrediting body and approved by the board. An applicant for a multistate license to 11 

practice registered nursing shall, in addition to the requirements of this chapter, 12 

meet the requirements of AS 08.69. 13 

(b)  An applicant for a license to practice practical nursing may obtain a 14 

license under this chapter or a multistate license that meets the requirements of 15 

this chapter and AS 08.69. An applicant for a multistate license to practice 16 

registered nursing shall, in addition to the requirements of this chapter, meet the 17 

requirements of AS 08.69. An applicant for a license to practice practical nursing 18 

under this chapter shall submit to the board, on forms and in the manner prescribed 19 

by the board, written evidence, verified by oath, that the applicant has successfully 20 

completed 21 

(1)  a practical nurse education program accredited by a national 22 

nursing accrediting body; 23 

(2)  a practical nurse education program that meets the criteria 24 

established by the board under AS 08.68.100; or 25 

(3)  a registered nurse education program accredited by a national 26 

nursing accrediting body and approved by the board and, if the applicant has failed the 27 

registered nurse licensing examination, a practical nurse scope of practice course 28 

approved by the board. 29 

(c)  An applicant for a license to practice advanced practice registered nursing 30 

shall submit to the board, on forms and in the manner prescribed by the board, written 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -6- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

evidence, verified by oath, that the applicant 1 

(1)  is licensed as a registered nurse in the state or is practicing as a 2 

registered nurse with a multistate license under AS 08.69; and 3 

(2)  has successfully completed an advanced practice registered nurse 4 

education program that meets the criteria established by the board under 5 

AS 08.68.100. 6 

   * Sec. 7.  AS 08.68.190(b) is amended to read: 7 

(b)  If an applicant meets the qualifications set out in AS 08.68.170 for the 8 

license for which the applicant applied, the board shall issue a license under this 9 

chapter to practice in this state 10 

(1)  registered or practical nursing to an applicant who passes the 11 

licensing examination to practice registered or practical nursing; or 12 

(2)  advanced practice registered nursing to an applicant who passes the 13 

advanced practice registered nursing certification examination to practice advanced 14 

practice registered nursing. 15 

   * Sec. 8.  AS 08.68.190 is amended by adding a new subsection to read: 16 

(c)  If an applicant meets the qualifications set out in AS 08.68.170 and 17 

AS 08.69 for the license for which the applicant applied, the board shall issue a 18 

multistate license to practice registered or practical nursing to an applicant who passes 19 

the licensing examination to practice registered or practical nursing. 20 

   * Sec. 9.  AS 08.68.200 is amended to read: 21 

Sec. 08.68.200. License by endorsement. (a) The board may issue a license 22 

by endorsement to practice in this state as a registered, advanced practice registered, 23 

or practical nurse, whichever is appropriate, to an applicant who has worked as a nurse 24 

within the past five years if the applicant is licensed as a registered, advanced practice 25 

registered, or practical nurse under the laws of another state if, in the opinion of the 26 

board, the applicant meets the qualifications required for licensing in the state and 27 

meets the requirements of AS 08.68.170. 28 

(b)  The board may issue a license by endorsement to practice in this state as a 29 

registered, advanced practice registered, or practical nurse, whichever is appropriate, 30 

to an applicant who has not worked as a nurse within the past five years if the 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB0067A -7- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

applicant meets the requirements of (a) of this section and 1 

(1)  meets the continuing competency requirements of the board; or 2 

(2)  completes a course of study approved by the board. 3 

   * Sec. 10.  AS 08.68.220 is amended to read: 4 

Sec. 08.68.220. Fees. The Department of Commerce, Community, and 5 

Economic Development shall set fees under AS 08.01.065 for each of the following: 6 

(1)  registered nursing licenses issued for multistate practice or 7 

practice in this state: 8 

(A)  application; 9 

(B)  license by examination; 10 

(C)  license by endorsement; 11 

(D)  license renewal; 12 

(E)  temporary permit; 13 

(2)  practical nursing licenses issued for multistate practice or 14 

practice in this state: 15 

(A)  application; 16 

(B)  license by examination; 17 

(C)  license by endorsement; 18 

(D)  license renewal; 19 

(E)  temporary permit; 20 

(3)  advanced practice registered nursing licenses issued for practice 21 

in this state: 22 

(A)  application; 23 

(B)  license by certification examination; 24 

(C)  license by endorsement; 25 

(D)  license renewal; 26 

(E)  temporary permit. 27 

   * Sec. 11.  AS 08.68.230(a) is amended to read: 28 

(a)  A person who holds a license [LICENSED] to practice registered nursing 29 

in the state or who holds a multistate license under AS 08.69 may use the title 30 

"registered nurse" and the abbreviation "R.N". 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -8- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

   * Sec. 12.  AS 08.68.230(b) is amended to read: 1 

(b)  A person who holds a license [LICENSED] to practice practical nursing 2 

in the state or who holds a multistate license under AS 08.69 may use the title 3 

"licensed practical nurse" and the abbreviation "L.P.N." 4 

   * Sec. 13.  AS 08.68.230(d) is amended to read: 5 

(d)  A person who holds a temporary permit to practice as a licensed practical 6 

nurse in the state shall use the title "Temporary Licensed Practical Nurse" and the 7 

abbreviation "TLPN." 8 

   * Sec. 14.  AS 08.68.251(a) is amended to read: 9 

(a)  A lapsed license to practice in this state or a multistate license issued by 10 

the board under this chapter and AS 08.69 may be reinstated if it has not remained 11 

lapsed for more than five years by payment of the license fees for the current renewal 12 

period and the penalty fee. The board, by regulation, shall establish continuing 13 

competency and criminal background check requirements for reinstatement of a lapsed 14 

license. 15 

   * Sec. 15.  AS 08.68.270 is amended to read: 16 

Sec. 08.68.270. Grounds for denial, suspension, or revocation. The board 17 

may deny, suspend, or revoke the license issued by the board under this chapter or 18 

AS 08.69 of a person who 19 

(1)  has obtained or attempted to obtain a license to practice nursing by 20 

fraud or deceit; 21 

(2)  has been convicted of a felony or other crime if the felony or other 22 

crime is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of the licensee; 23 

(3)  habitually abuses alcoholic beverages, or illegally uses controlled 24 

substances; 25 

(4)  has impersonated a registered, advanced practice registered, or 26 

practical nurse; 27 

(5)  has intentionally or negligently engaged in conduct that has 28 

resulted in a significant risk to the health or safety of a client or in injury to a client; 29 

(6)  practices or attempts to practice nursing while afflicted with 30 

physical or mental illness, deterioration, or disability that interferes with the 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB0067A -9- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

individual's performance of nursing functions; 1 

(7)  is guilty of unprofessional conduct as defined by regulations 2 

adopted by the board; 3 

(8)  has wilfully or repeatedly violated a provision of this chapter or 4 

regulations adopted under this chapter or AS 08.01; 5 

(9)  is professionally incompetent; 6 

(10)  denies care or treatment to a patient or person seeking assistance 7 

if the sole reason for the denial is the failure or refusal of the patient or person seeking 8 

assistance to agree to arbitrate as provided in AS 09.55.535(a); 9 

(11)  has prescribed or dispensed an opioid in excess of the maximum 10 

dosage authorized under AS 08.68.705; or 11 

(12)  has procured, sold, prescribed, or dispensed drugs in violation of a 12 

law, regardless of whether there has been a criminal action or harm to the patient. 13 

   * Sec. 16.  AS 08.68.275(a) is amended to read: 14 

(a)  The board may take the following disciplinary actions singly or in 15 

combination, against any license granted by the board under this chapter or 16 

AS 08.69: 17 

(1)  permanently revoke a license or permit to practice; 18 

(2)  suspend a license for a stated period of time; 19 

(3)  censure a licensee; 20 

(4)  issue a letter of reprimand; 21 

(5)  impose limitations or conditions on the professional practice of a 22 

licensee; 23 

(6)  impose peer review; 24 

(7)  impose professional education requirements until a satisfactory 25 

degree of skill has been attained in those aspects of professional practice determined 26 

by the board to need improvement; 27 

(8)  impose probation and require the licensee to report regularly to the 28 

board upon matters involving the basis for the probation; 29 

(9)  accept a voluntary surrender of a license. 30 

   * Sec. 17.  AS 08.68.275(c) is amended to read: 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -10- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

(c)  The board may summarily suspend a license that the board issued before 1 

final hearing or during the appeals process if the board finds that the licensee poses a 2 

clear and immediate danger to the public health and safety. A person whose license is 3 

suspended under this section is entitled to a hearing conducted by the office of 4 

administrative hearings (AS 44.64.010) within seven days after the effective date of 5 

the order. If, after a hearing, the board upholds the suspension, the licensee may 6 

appeal the suspension to a court of competent jurisdiction. 7 

   * Sec. 18.  AS 08.68.275(d) is amended to read: 8 

(d)  The board may reinstate a license that the board issued, that has been 9 

suspended or revoked if the board finds, after a hearing, that the applicant is able to 10 

practice with skill and safety. 11 

   * Sec. 19.  AS 08.68.275 is amended by adding a new subsection to read: 12 

(g)  The board may take the following disciplinary actions singly or in 13 

combination, against any licensee who is practicing in this state under a multistate 14 

license issued by another state under AS 08.69: 15 

(1)  suspend a license for a stated period of time; 16 

(2)  censure a licensee; 17 

(3)  issue a letter of reprimand; 18 

(4)  impose limitations or conditions on the professional practice of a 19 

licensee; 20 

(5)  impose peer review; 21 

(6)  impose professional education requirements until a satisfactory 22 

degree of skill has been attained in those aspects of professional practice determined 23 

by the board to need improvement; 24 

(7)  impose probation and require the licensee to report regularly to the 25 

board on matters involving the basis for the probation. 26 

   * Sec. 20.  AS 08.68.800(a) is amended to read: 27 

(a)  This chapter does not apply to 28 

(1)  a qualified nurse licensed in another state employed by the United 29 

States government or a bureau, or agency, or division of the United States government 30 

while in the discharge of official duties; 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB0067A -11- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

(2)  nursing service given temporarily in the event of a public 1 

emergency, epidemic, or disaster; 2 

(3)  the practice of nursing by a student enrolled in a nursing education 3 

program accredited by the board when the practice is in connection with the student's 4 

course of study; 5 

(4)  the practice of nursing by an individual enrolled in an approved 6 

program or course of study approved by the board to satisfy the requirements of 7 

AS 08.68.251; 8 

(5)  the practice of nursing by a nurse licensed in another state but not 9 

under a multistate license issued under AS 08.69, who engages in nursing education 10 

or nursing consultation activities, if these activities and contact with clients do not 11 

exceed 20 working days within a licensing period; or 12 

(6)  the practice of nursing by a nurse licensed in another state but not 13 

under a multistate license issued under AS 08.69, whose employment 14 

responsibilities include transporting patients into, out of, or through this state; 15 

however, this exception is valid for a period not to exceed 48 hours for each transport. 16 

   * Sec. 21.  AS 08.68.805 is amended to read: 17 

Sec. 08.68.805. Delegation of nursing functions. A registered, advanced 18 

practice registered, or practical nurse licensed under this chapter or AS 08.69 may 19 

delegate nursing duties to other persons, including unlicensed assistive personnel, 20 

under regulations adopted by the board. A person to whom the nursing duties are 21 

delegated may perform the delegated duties without a license or certificate under this 22 

chapter if the person meets the applicable requirements established by the board. 23 

   * Sec. 22.  AS 08.68.850(1) is amended to read: 24 

(1)  "advanced practice registered nurse" means a [REGISTERED] 25 

nurse who holds a license [LICENSED] to practice registered nursing in this state 26 

under this chapter or AS 08.69 and [IN THE STATE] who, because of specialized 27 

education and experience, is licensed by the board [CERTIFIED] to perform acts of 28 

medical diagnosis and the prescription and dispensing of medical, therapeutic, or 29 

corrective measures under regulations adopted by the board; 30 

   * Sec. 23.  AS 08 is amended by adding a new chapter to read: 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -12- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

Chapter 69. Multistate Nurse Licensure Compact. 1 

Sec. 08.69.010. Compact enacted. The Multistate Nurse Licensure Compact 2 

as contained in this section is enacted into law and entered into on behalf of the state 3 

with all other states and jurisdictions legally joining it in a form substantially as 4 

follows: 5 

ARTICLE I 6 

Findings and Declaration of Purpose 7 

(a)  The legislature finds that: 8 

(1)  The health and safety of the public are affected by the degree of 9 

compliance with and the effectiveness of enforcement activities related to state nurse 10 

licensure laws; 11 

(2)  Violations of nurse licensure and other laws regulating the practice 12 

of nursing may result in injury or harm to the public; 13 

(3)  The expanded mobility of nurses and the use of advanced 14 

communication technologies as part of our nation's health care delivery system require 15 

greater coordination and cooperation among states in the areas of nurse licensure and 16 

regulation; 17 

(4)  New practice modalities and technology make compliance with 18 

individual state nurse licensure laws difficult and complex; 19 

(5)  The current system of duplicative licensure for nurses practicing in 20 

multiple states is cumbersome and redundant for both nurses and states; and 21 

(6)  Uniformity of nurse licensure requirements throughout the states 22 

promotes public safety and public health benefits. 23 

(b)  The general purposes of this Compact are to: 24 

(1)  Facilitate the states' responsibility to protect the public's health and 25 

safety; 26 

(2)  Ensure and encourage the cooperation of party states in the areas of 27 

nurse licensure and regulation; 28 

(3)  Facilitate the exchange of information between party states in the 29 

areas of nurse regulation, investigation and adverse actions; 30 

(4)  Promote compliance with the laws governing the practice of 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB0067A -13- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

nursing in each jurisdiction; 1 

(5)  Invest all party states with the authority to hold a nurse accountable 2 

for meeting all state practice laws in the state in which the patient is located at the time 3 

care is rendered through the mutual recognition of party state licenses; 4 

(6)  Decrease redundancies in the consideration and issuance of nurse 5 

licenses; and 6 

(7)  Provide opportunities for interstate practice by nurses who meet 7 

uniform licensure requirements. 8 

ARTICLE II 9 

Definitions 10 

As used in this compact, unless the context clearly requires a different construction, 11 

(1)  "Adverse action" means any administrative, civil, equitable or 12 

criminal action permitted by a state's laws which is imposed by a licensing board or 13 

other authority against a nurse, including actions against an individual's license or 14 

multistate licensure privilege such as revocation, suspension, probation, monitoring of 15 

the licensee, limitation on the licensee's practice, or any other encumbrance on 16 

licensure affecting a nurse's authorization to practice, including issuance of a cease 17 

and desist action. 18 

(2)  "Alternative program" means a non-disciplinary monitoring 19 

program approved by a licensing board. 20 

(3)  "Coordinated licensure information system" means an integrated 21 

process for collecting, storing and sharing information on nurse licensure and 22 

enforcement activities related to nurse licensure laws that is administered by a 23 

nonprofit organization composed of and controlled by licensing boards. 24 

(4)  "Current significant investigative information" means: 25 

(A)  Investigative information that a licensing board, after a 26 

preliminary inquiry that includes notification and an opportunity for the nurse 27 

to respond, if required by state law, has reason to believe is not groundless and, 28 

if proved true, would indicate more than a minor infraction; or 29 

(B)  Investigative information that indicates that the nurse 30 

represents an immediate threat to public health and safety regardless of 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -14- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

whether the nurse has been notified and had an opportunity to respond. 1 

(5)  "Encumbrance" means a revocation or suspension of, or any 2 

limitation on, the full and unrestricted practice of nursing imposed by a licensing 3 

board. 4 

(6)  "Home state" means the party state which is the nurse's primary 5 

state of residence. 6 

(7)  "Licensing board" means a party state's regulatory body 7 

responsible for issuing nurse licenses. 8 

(8)  "Multistate license" means a license to practice as a registered or a 9 

licensed practical/vocational nurse (LPN/VN) issued by a home state licensing board 10 

that authorizes the licensed nurse to practice in all party states under a multistate 11 

licensure privilege. 12 

(9)  "Multistate licensure privilege" means a legal authorization 13 

associated with a multistate license permitting the practice of nursing as either a 14 

registered nurse (RN) or LPN/VN in a remote state. 15 

(10)  "Nurse" means RN or LPN/VN, as those terms are defined by 16 

each party state's practice laws. 17 

(11)  "Party state" means any state that has adopted this Compact. 18 

(12)  "Remote state" means a party state, other than the home state. 19 

(13)  "Single-state license" means a nurse license issued by a party state 20 

that authorizes practice only within the issuing state and does not include a multistate 21 

licensure privilege to practice in any other party state. 22 

(14)  "State" means a state, territory or possession of the United States 23 

and the District of Columbia. 24 

(15)  "State practice laws" means a party state's laws, rules and 25 

regulations that govern the practice of nursing, define the scope of nursing practice, 26 

and create the methods and grounds for imposing discipline. "State practice laws" do 27 

not include requirements necessary to obtain and retain a license, except for 28 

qualifications or requirements of the home state. 29 

ARTICLE III 30 

General Provisions and Jurisdiction 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB0067A -15- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

(a)  A multistate license to practice registered or licensed practical/vocational 1 

nursing issued by a home state to a resident in that state will be recognized by each 2 

party state as authorizing a nurse to practice as a registered nurse (RN) or as a licensed 3 

practical/vocational nurse (LPN/VN), under a multistate licensure privilege, in each 4 

party state. 5 

(b)  A state must implement procedures for considering the criminal history 6 

records of applicants for initial multistate license or licensure by endorsement. Such 7 

procedures shall include the submission of fingerprints or other biometric-based 8 

information by applicants for the purpose of obtaining an applicant's criminal history 9 

record information from the Federal Bureau of Investigation and the agency 10 

responsible for retaining that state's criminal records. 11 

(c)  Each party state shall require the following for an applicant to obtain or 12 

retain a multistate license in the home state: 13 

(1)  Meets the home state's qualifications for licensure or renewal of 14 

licensure, as well as, all other applicable state laws; 15 

(2)  Has graduated or is eligible to graduate from a licensing board-16 

approved RN or LPN/VN prelicensure education program; or has graduated from a 17 

foreign RN or LPN/VN prelicensure education program that (a) has been approved by 18 

the authorized accrediting body in the applicable country and (b) has been verified by 19 

an independent credentials review agency to be comparable to a licensing board-20 

approved prelicensure education program; 21 

(3)  Has, if a graduate of a foreign prelicensure education program not 22 

taught in English or if English is not the individual's native language, successfully 23 

passed an English proficiency examination that includes the components of reading, 24 

speaking, writing and listening; 25 

(4)  Has successfully passed an NCLEX-RN or NCLEX-PN 26 

Examination or recognized predecessor, as applicable; 27 

(5)  Is eligible for or holds an active, unencumbered license; 28 

(6)  Has submitted, in connection with an application for initial 29 

licensure or licensure by endorsement, fingerprints or other biometric data for the 30 

purpose of obtaining criminal history record information from the Federal Bureau of 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -16- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

Investigation and the agency responsible for retaining that state's criminal records; 1 

(7)  Has not been convicted or found guilty, or has entered into an 2 

agreed disposition, of a felony offense under applicable state or federal criminal law; 3 

(8)  Has not been convicted or found guilty, or has entered into an 4 

agreed disposition, of a misdemeanor offense related to the practice of nursing as 5 

determined on a case-by-case basis; 6 

(9)  Is not currently enrolled in an alternative program; 7 

(10)  Is subject to self-disclosure requirements regarding current 8 

participation in an alternative program; and 9 

(11)  Has a valid United States Social Security number. 10 

(d)  All party states shall be authorized, in accordance with existing state due 11 

process law, to take adverse action against a nurse's multistate licensure privilege such 12 

as revocation, suspension, probation or any other action that affects a nurse's 13 

authorization to practice under a multistate licensure privilege, including cease and 14 

desist actions. If a party state takes such action, it shall promptly notify the 15 

administrator of the coordinated licensure information system. The administrator of 16 

the coordinated licensure information system shall promptly notify the home state of 17 

any such actions by remote states. 18 

(e)  A nurse practicing in a party state must comply with the state practice laws 19 

of the state in which the client is located at the time service is provided. The practice 20 

of nursing is not limited to patient care, but shall include all nursing practice as 21 

defined by the state practice laws of the party state in which the client is located. The 22 

practice of nursing in a party state under a multistate licensure privilege will subject a 23 

nurse to the jurisdiction of the licensing board, the courts and the laws of the party 24 

state in which the client is located at the time service is provided. 25 

(f)  Individuals not residing in a party state shall continue to be able to apply 26 

for a party state's single-state license as provided under the laws of each party state. 27 

However, the single-state license granted to these individuals will not be recognized as 28 

granting the privilege to practice nursing in any other party state. Nothing in this 29 

Compact shall affect the requirements established by a party state for the issuance of a 30 

single-state license. 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB0067A -17- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

(g)  Any nurse holding a home state multistate license, on the effective date of 1 

this Compact, may retain and renew the multistate license issued by the nurse's then-2 

current home state, provided that: 3 

(1)  A nurse, who changes primary state of residence after this 4 

Compact's effective date, must meet all applicable Article III.c. requirements to obtain 5 

a multistate license from a new home state. 6 

(2)  A nurse who fails to satisfy the multistate licensure requirements in 7 

Article III.c. due to a disqualifying event occurring after this Compact's effective date 8 

shall be ineligible to retain or renew a multistate license, and the nurse's multistate 9 

license shall be revoked or deactivated in accordance with applicable rules adopted by 10 

the Interstate Commission of Nurse Licensure Compact Administrators 11 

("Commission"). 12 

ARTICLE IV 13 

Applications for Licensure in a Party State 14 

(a)  Upon application for a multistate license, the licensing board in the issuing 15 

party state shall ascertain, through the coordinated licensure information system, 16 

whether the applicant has ever held, or is the holder of, a license issued by any other 17 

state, whether there are any encumbrances on any license or multistate licensure 18 

privilege held by the applicant, whether any adverse action has been taken against any 19 

license or multistate licensure privilege held by the applicant and whether the 20 

applicant is currently participating in an alternative program. 21 

(b)  A nurse may hold a multistate license, issued by the home state, in only 22 

one party state at a time. 23 

(c)  If a nurse changes primary state of residence by moving between two party 24 

states, the nurse must apply for licensure in the new home state, and the multistate 25 

license issued by the prior home state will be deactivated in accordance with 26 

applicable rules adopted by the Commission. 27 

(1)  The nurse may apply for licensure in advance of a change in 28 

primary state of residence. 29 

(2)  A multistate license shall not be issued by the new home state until 30 

the nurse provides satisfactory evidence of a change in primary state of residence to 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -18- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

the new home state and satisfies all applicable requirements to obtain a multistate 1 

license from the new home state. 2 

(d)  If a nurse changes primary state of residence by moving from a party state 3 

to a non-party state, the multistate license issued by the prior home state will convert 4 

to a single-state license, valid only in the former home state. 5 

ARTICLE V 6 

Additional Authorities Invested in Party State Licensing Boards 7 

(a)  In addition to the other powers conferred by state law, a licensing board 8 

shall have the authority to: 9 

(1)  Take adverse action against a nurse's multistate licensure privilege 10 

to practice within that party state. 11 

(A)  Only the home state shall have the power to take adverse 12 

action against a nurse's license issued by the home state. 13 

(B)  For purposes of taking adverse action, the home state 14 

licensing board shall give the same priority and effect to reported conduct 15 

received from a remote state as it would if such conduct had occurred within 16 

the home state. In so doing, the home state shall apply its own state laws to 17 

determine appropriate action. 18 

(2)  Issue cease and desist orders or impose an encumbrance on a 19 

nurse's authority to practice within that party state. 20 

(3)  Complete any pending investigations of a nurse who changes 21 

primary state of residence during the course of such investigations. The licensing 22 

board shall also have the authority to take appropriate action(s) and shall promptly 23 

report the conclusions of such investigations to the administrator of the coordinated 24 

licensure information system. The administrator of the coordinated licensure 25 

information system shall promptly notify the new home state of any such actions. 26 

(4)  Issue subpoenas for both hearings and investigations that require 27 

the attendance and testimony of witnesses, as well as, the production of evidence. 28 

Subpoenas issued by a licensing board in a party state for the attendance and 29 

testimony of witnesses or the production of evidence from another party state shall be 30 

enforced in the latter state by any court of competent jurisdiction, according to the 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB0067A -19- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

practice and procedure of that court applicable to subpoenas issued in proceedings 1 

pending before it. The issuing authority shall pay any witness fees, travel expenses, 2 

mileage and other fees required by the service statutes of the state in which the 3 

witnesses or evidence are located. 4 

(5)  Obtain and submit, for each nurse licensure applicant, fingerprint 5 

or other biometric-based information to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for 6 

criminal background checks, receive the results of the Federal Bureau of Investigation 7 

record search on criminal background checks and use the results in making licensure 8 

decisions. 9 

(6)  If otherwise permitted by state law, recover from the affected nurse 10 

the costs of investigations and disposition of cases resulting from any adverse action 11 

taken against that nurse. 12 

(7)  Take adverse action based on the factual findings of the remote 13 

state, provided that the licensing board follows its own procedures for taking such 14 

adverse action. 15 

(b)  If adverse action is taken by the home state against a nurse's multistate 16 

license, the nurse's multistate licensure privilege to practice in all other party states 17 

shall be deactivated until all encumbrances have been removed from the multistate 18 

license. All home state disciplinary orders that impose adverse action against a nurse's 19 

multistate license shall include a statement that the nurse's multistate licensure 20 

privilege is deactivated in all party states during the pendency of the order. Nothing in 21 

this Compact shall override a party state's decision that participation in an alternative 22 

program may be used in lieu of adverse action. The home state licensing board shall 23 

deactivate the multistate licensure privilege under the multistate license of any nurse 24 

for the duration of the nurse's participation in an alternative program. 25 

ARTICLE VI 26 

Coordinated Licensure Information System and Exchange of Information 27 

(a)  All party states shall participate in a coordinated licensure information 28 

system of all licensed registered nurses (RNs) and licensed practical/vocational nurses 29 

(LPNs/VNs). This system will include information on the licensure and disciplinary 30 

history of each nurse, as submitted by party states, to assist in the coordination of 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -20- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

nurse licensure and enforcement efforts. 1 

(b)  The Commission, in consultation with the administrator of the coordinated 2 

licensure information system, shall formulate necessary and proper procedures for the 3 

identification, collection and exchange of information under this Compact. 4 

(c)  All licensing boards shall promptly report to the coordinated licensure 5 

information system any adverse action, any current significant investigative 6 

information, denials of applications (with the reasons for such denials) and nurse 7 

participation in alternative programs known to the licensing board regardless of 8 

whether such participation is deemed nonpublic or confidential under state law. 9 

(d)  Current significant investigative information and participation in nonpublic 10 

or confidential alternative programs shall be transmitted through the coordinated 11 

licensure information system only to party state licensing boards. 12 

(e)  Notwithstanding any other provision of law, all party state licensing boards 13 

contributing information to the coordinated licensure information system may 14 

designate information that may not be shared with non-party states or disclosed to 15 

other entities or individuals without the express permission of the contributing state. 16 

(f)  Any personally identifiable information obtained from the coordinated 17 

licensure information system by a party state licensing board shall not be shared with 18 

non-party states or disclosed to other entities or individuals except to the extent 19 

permitted by the laws of the party state contributing the information. 20 

(g)  Any information contributed to the coordinated licensure information 21 

system that is subsequently required to be expunged by the laws of the party state 22 

contributing that information shall also be expunged from the coordinated licensure 23 

information system. 24 

(h)  The Compact administrator of each party state shall furnish a uniform data 25 

set to the Compact administrator of each other party state, which shall include, at a 26 

minimum: 27 

(1)  Identifying information; 28 

(2)  Licensure data; 29 

(3)  Information related to alternative program participation; and 30 

(4)  Other information that may facilitate the administration of this 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB0067A -21- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

Compact, as determined by Commission rules. 1 

(i)  The Compact administrator of a party state shall provide all investigative 2 

documents and information requested by another party state. 3 

ARTICLE VII 4 

Establishment of the Interstate Commission of Nurse Licensure Compact Administrators 5 

(a)  The party states hereby create and establish a joint public entity known as 6 

the Interstate Commission of Nurse Licensure Compact Administrators. 7 

(1)  The Commission is an instrumentality of the party states. 8 

(2)  Venue is proper, and judicial proceedings by or against the 9 

Commission shall be brought solely and exclusively, in a court of competent 10 

jurisdiction where the principal office of the Commission is located. The Commission 11 

may waive venue and jurisdictional defenses to the extent it adopts or consents to 12 

participate in alternative dispute resolution proceedings. 13 

(3)  Nothing in this Compact shall be construed to be a waiver of 14 

sovereign immunity. 15 

(b)  Membership, Voting and Meetings 16 

(1)  Each party state shall have and be limited to one administrator. The 17 

head of the state licensing board or designee shall be the administrator of this Compact 18 

for each party state. Any administrator may be removed or suspended from office as 19 

provided by the law of the state from which the Administrator is appointed. Any 20 

vacancy occurring in the Commission shall be filled in accordance with the laws of the 21 

party state in which the vacancy exists. 22 

(2)  Each administrator shall be entitled to one (1) vote with regard to 23 

the promulgation of rules and creation of bylaws and shall otherwise have an 24 

opportunity to participate in the business and affairs of the Commission. An 25 

administrator shall vote in person or by such other means as provided in the bylaws. 26 

The bylaws may provide for an administrator's participation in meetings by telephone 27 

or other means of communication. 28 

(3)  The Commission shall meet at least once during each calendar 29 

year. Additional meetings shall be held as set forth in the bylaws or rules of the 30 

commission. 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -22- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

(4)  All meetings shall be open to the public, and public notice of 1 

meetings shall be given in the same manner as required under the rulemaking 2 

provisions in Article VIII. 3 

(5)  The Commission may convene in a closed, nonpublic meeting if 4 

the Commission must discuss: 5 

(A)  Noncompliance of a party state with its obligations under 6 

this Compact; 7 

(B)  The employment, compensation, discipline or other 8 

personnel matters, practices or procedures related to specific employees or 9 

other matters related to the Commission's internal personnel practices and 10 

procedures; 11 

(C)  Current, threatened or reasonably anticipated litigation; 12 

(D)  Negotiation of contracts for the purchase or sale of goods, 13 

services or real estate; 14 

(E)  Accusing any person of a crime or formally censuring any 15 

person; 16 

(F)  Disclosure of trade secrets or commercial or financial 17 

information that is privileged or confidential; 18 

(G)  Disclosure of information of a personal nature where 19 

disclosure would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of personal privacy; 20 

(H)  Disclosure of investigatory records compiled for law 21 

enforcement purposes; 22 

(I)  Disclosure of information related to any reports prepared by 23 

or on behalf of the Commission for the purpose of investigation of compliance 24 

with this Compact; or 25 

(J)  Matters specifically exempted from disclosure by federal or 26 

state statute. 27 

(6)  If a meeting, or portion of a meeting, is closed pursuant to this 28 

provision, the Commission's legal counsel or designee shall certify that the meeting 29 

may be closed and shall reference each relevant exempting provision. The 30 

Commission shall keep minutes that fully and clearly describe all matters discussed in 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB0067A -23- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

a meeting and shall provide a full and accurate summary of actions taken, and the 1 

reasons therefor, including a description of the views expressed. All documents 2 

considered in connection with an action shall be identified in such minutes. All 3 

minutes and documents of a closed meeting shall remain under seal, subject to release 4 

by a majority vote of the Commission or order of a court of competent jurisdiction. 5 

(c)  The Commission shall, by a majority vote of the administrators, prescribe 6 

bylaws or rules to govern its conduct as may be necessary or appropriate to carry out 7 

the purposes and exercise the powers of this Compact, including but not limited to: 8 

(1)  Establishing the fiscal year of the Commission; 9 

(2)  Providing reasonable standards and procedures: 10 

(A)  For the establishment and meetings of other committees; 11 

and 12 

(B)  Governing any general or specific delegation of any 13 

authority or function of the Commission; 14 

(3)  Providing reasonable procedures for calling and conducting 15 

meetings of the Commission, ensuring reasonable advance notice of all meetings and 16 

providing an opportunity for attendance of such meetings by interested parties, with 17 

enumerated exceptions designed to protect the public's interest, the privacy of 18 

individuals, and proprietary information, including trade secrets. The Commission 19 

may meet in closed session only after a majority of the administrators vote to close a 20 

meeting in whole or in part. As soon as practicable, the Commission must make public 21 

a copy of the vote to close the meeting revealing the vote of each administrator, with 22 

no proxy votes allowed; 23 

(4)  Establishing the titles, duties and authority and reasonable 24 

procedures for the election of the officers of the Commission; 25 

(5)  Providing reasonable standards and procedures for the 26 

establishment of the personnel policies and programs of the Commission. 27 

Notwithstanding any civil service or other similar laws of any party state, the bylaws 28 

shall exclusively govern the personnel policies and programs of the Commission; and 29 

(6)  Providing a mechanism for winding up the operations of the 30 

Commission and the equitable disposition of any surplus funds that may exist after the 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -24- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

termination of this Compact after the payment or reserving of all of its debts and 1 

obligations; 2 

(d)  The Commission shall publish its bylaws and rules, and any amendments 3 

thereto, in a convenient form on the website of the Commission. 4 

(e)  The Commission shall maintain its financial records in accordance with the 5 

bylaws. 6 

(f)  The Commission shall meet and take such actions as are consistent with the 7 

provisions of this Compact and the bylaws. 8 

(g)  The Commission shall have the following powers: 9 

(1)  To promulgate uniform rules to facilitate and coordinate 10 

implementation and administration of this Compact. The rules shall have the force and 11 

effect of law and shall be binding in all party states; 12 

(2)  To bring and prosecute legal proceedings or actions in the name of 13 

the Commission, provided that the standing of any licensing board to sue or be sued 14 

under applicable law shall not be affected; 15 

(3)  To purchase and maintain insurance and bonds; 16 

(4)  To borrow, accept or contract for services of personnel, including, 17 

but not limited to, employees of a party state or nonprofit organizations; 18 

(5)  To cooperate with other organizations that administer state 19 

compacts related to the regulation of nursing, including but not limited to sharing 20 

administrative or staff expenses, office space or other resources; 21 

(6)  To hire employees, elect or appoint officers, fix compensation, 22 

define duties, grant such individuals appropriate authority to carry out the purposes of 23 

this Compact, and to establish the Commission's personnel policies and programs 24 

relating to conflicts of interest, qualifications of personnel and other related personnel 25 

matters; 26 

(7)  To accept any and all appropriate donations, grants and gifts of 27 

money, equipment, supplies, materials and services, and to receive, utilize and dispose 28 

of the same; provided that at all times the Commission shall avoid any appearance of 29 

impropriety or conflict of interest; 30 

(8)  To lease, purchase, accept appropriate gifts or donations of, or 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB0067A -25- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

otherwise to own, hold, improve or use, any property, whether real, personal or mixed; 1 

provided that at all times the Commission shall avoid any appearance of impropriety; 2 

(9)  To sell, convey, mortgage, pledge, lease, exchange, abandon or 3 

otherwise dispose of any property, whether real, personal or mixed; 4 

(10)  To establish a budget and make expenditures; 5 

(11)  To borrow money; 6 

(12)  To appoint committees, including advisory committees comprised 7 

of administrators, state nursing regulators, state legislators or their representatives, and 8 

consumer representatives, and other such interested persons; 9 

(13)  To provide and receive information from, and to cooperate with, 10 

law enforcement agencies; 11 

(14)  To adopt and use an official seal; and 12 

(15)  To perform such other functions as may be necessary or 13 

appropriate to achieve the purposes of this Compact consistent with the state 14 

regulation of nurse licensure and practice. 15 

(h)  Financing of the Commission 16 

(1)  The Commission shall pay, or provide for the payment of, the 17 

reasonable expenses of its establishment, organization and ongoing activities. 18 

(2)  The Commission may also levy on and collect an annual 19 

assessment from each party state to cover the cost of its operations, activities and staff 20 

in its annual budget as approved each year. The aggregate annual assessment amount, 21 

if any, shall be allocated based upon a formula to be determined by the Commission, 22 

which shall promulgate a rule that is binding upon all party states. 23 

(3)  The Commission shall not incur obligations of any kind prior to 24 

securing the funds adequate to meet the same; nor shall the Commission pledge the 25 

credit of any of the party states, except by, and with the authority of, such party state. 26 

(4)  The Commission shall keep accurate accounts of all receipts and 27 

disbursements. The receipts and disbursements of the Commission shall be subject to 28 

the audit and accounting procedures established under its bylaws. However, all 29 

receipts and disbursements of funds handled by the Commission shall be audited 30 

yearly by a certified or licensed public accountant, and the report of the audit shall be 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -26- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

included in and become part of the annual report of the Commission. 1 

(i)  Qualified Immunity, Defense and Indemnification 2 

(1)  The administrators, officers, executive director, employees and 3 

representatives of the Commission shall be immune from suit and liability, either 4 

personally or in their official capacity, for any claim for damage to or loss of property 5 

or personal injury or other civil liability caused by or arising out of any actual or 6 

alleged act, error or omission that occurred, or that the person against whom the claim 7 

is made had a reasonable basis for believing occurred, within the scope of 8 

Commission employment, duties or responsibilities; provided that nothing in this 9 

paragraph shall be construed to protect any such person from suit or liability for any 10 

damage, loss, injury or liability caused by the intentional, willful or wanton 11 

misconduct of that person. 12 

(2)  The Commission shall defend any administrator, officer, executive 13 

director, employee or representative of the Commission in any civil action seeking to 14 

impose liability arising out of any actual or alleged act, error or omission that occurred 15 

within the scope of Commission employment, duties or responsibilities, or that the 16 

person against whom the claim is made had a reasonable basis for believing occurred 17 

within the scope of Commission employment, duties or responsibilities; provided that 18 

nothing herein shall be construed to prohibit that person from retaining his or her own 19 

counsel; and provided further that the actual or alleged act, error or omission did not 20 

result from that person's intentional, willful or wanton misconduct. 21 

(3)  The Commission shall indemnify and hold harmless any 22 

administrator, officer, executive director, employee or representative of the 23 

Commission for the amount of any settlement or judgment obtained against that 24 

person arising out of any actual or alleged act, error or omission that occurred within 25 

the scope of Commission employment, duties or responsibilities, or that such person 26 

had a reasonable basis for believing occurred within the scope of Commission 27 

employment, duties or responsibilities, provided that the actual or alleged act, error or 28 

omission did not result from the intentional, willful or wanton misconduct of that 29 

person. 30 

ARTICLE VIII 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB0067A -27- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

Rulemaking 1 

(a)  The Commission shall exercise its rulemaking powers pursuant to the 2 

criteria set forth in this Article and the rules adopted thereunder. Rules and 3 

amendments shall become binding as of the date specified in each rule or amendment 4 

and shall have the same force and effect as provisions of this Compact. 5 

(b)  Rules or amendments to the rules shall be adopted at a regular or special 6 

meeting of the Commission. 7 

(c)  Prior to promulgation and adoption of a final rule or rules by the 8 

Commission, and at least sixty (60) days in advance of the meeting at which the rule 9 

will be considered and voted upon, the Commission shall file a notice of proposed 10 

rulemaking: 11 

(1)  On the website of the Commission; and 12 

(2)  On the website of each licensing board or the publication in which 13 

each state would otherwise publish proposed rules. 14 

(d)  The notice of proposed rulemaking shall include: 15 

(1)  The proposed time, date and location of the meeting in which the 16 

rule will be considered and voted upon; 17 

(2)  The text of the proposed rule or amendment, and the reason for the 18 

proposed rule; 19 

(3)  A request for comments on the proposed rule from any interested 20 

person; and 21 

(4)  The manner in which interested persons may submit notice to the 22 

Commission of their intention to attend the public hearing and any written comments. 23 

(e)  Prior to adoption of a proposed rule, the Commission shall allow persons 24 

to submit written data, facts, opinions and arguments, which shall be made available to 25 

the public. 26 

(f)  The Commission shall grant an opportunity for a public hearing before it 27 

adopts a rule or amendment. 28 

(g)  The Commission shall publish the place, time and date of the scheduled 29 

public hearing. 30 

(1)  Hearings shall be conducted in a manner providing each person 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -28- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

who wishes to comment a fair and reasonable opportunity to comment orally or in 1 

writing. All hearings will be recorded, and a copy will be made available upon request. 2 

(2)  Nothing in this section shall be construed as requiring a separate 3 

hearing on each rule. Rules may be grouped for the convenience of the Commission at 4 

hearings required by this section. 5 

(h)  If no one appears at the public hearing, the Commission may proceed with 6 

promulgation of the proposed rule. 7 

(i)  Following the scheduled hearing date, or by the close of business on the 8 

scheduled hearing date if the hearing was not held, the Commission shall consider all 9 

written and oral comments received. 10 

(j)  The Commission shall, by majority vote of all administrators, take final 11 

action on the proposed rule and shall determine the effective date of the rule, if any, 12 

based on the rulemaking record and the full text of the rule. 13 

(k)  Upon determination that an emergency exists, the Commission may 14 

consider and adopt an emergency rule without prior notice, opportunity for comment 15 

or hearing, provided that the usual rulemaking procedures provided in this Compact 16 

and in this section shall be retroactively applied to the rule as soon as reasonably 17 

possible, in no event later than ninety (90) days after the effective date of the rule. For 18 

the purposes of this provision, an emergency rule is one that must be adopted 19 

immediately in order to: 20 

(1)  Meet an imminent threat to public health, safety or welfare; 21 

(2)  Prevent a loss of Commission or party state funds; or 22 

(3)  Meet a deadline for the promulgation of an administrative rule that 23 

is required by federal law or rule. 24 

(l)  The Commission may direct revisions to a previously adopted rule or 25 

amendment for purposes of correcting typographical errors, errors in format, errors in 26 

consistency or grammatical errors. Public notice of any revisions shall be posted on 27 

the website of the Commission. The revision shall be subject to challenge by any 28 

person for a period of thirty (30) days after posting. The revision may be challenged 29 

only on grounds that the revision results in a material change to a rule. A challenge 30 

shall be made in writing, and delivered to the Commission, prior to the end of the 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB0067A -29- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

notice period. If no challenge is made, the revision will take effect without further 1 

action. If the revision is challenged, the revision may not take effect without the 2 

approval of the Commission. 3 

ARTICLE IX 4 

Oversight, Dispute Resolution and Enforcement 5 

(a)  Oversight 6 

(1)  Each party state shall enforce this Compact and take all actions 7 

necessary and appropriate to effectuate this Compact's purposes and intent. 8 

(2)  The Commission shall be entitled to receive service of process in 9 

any proceeding that may affect the powers, responsibilities or actions of the 10 

Commission, and shall have standing to intervene in such a proceeding for all 11 

purposes. Failure to provide service of process in such proceeding to the Commission 12 

shall render a judgment or order void as to the Commission, this Compact or 13 

promulgated rules. 14 

(b)  Default, Technical Assistance and Termination 15 

(1)  If the Commission determines that a party state has defaulted in the 16 

performance of its obligations or responsibilities under this Compact or the 17 

promulgated rules, the Commission shall: 18 

(A)  Provide written notice to the defaulting state and other 19 

party states of the nature of the default, the proposed means of curing the 20 

default or any other action to be taken by the Commission; and 21 

(B)  Provide remedial training and specific technical assistance 22 

regarding the default. 23 

(2)  If a state in default fails to cure the default, the defaulting state's 24 

membership in this Compact may be terminated upon an affirmative vote of a majority 25 

of the administrators, and all rights, privileges and benefits conferred by this Compact 26 

may be terminated on the effective date of termination. A cure of the default does not 27 

relieve the offending state of obligations or liabilities incurred during the period of 28 

default. 29 

(3)  Termination of membership in this Compact shall be imposed only 30 

after all other means of securing compliance have been exhausted. Notice of intent to 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -30- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

suspend or terminate shall be given by the Commission to the governor of the 1 

defaulting state and to the executive officer of the defaulting state's licensing board 2 

and each of the party states. 3 

(4)  A state whose membership in this Compact has been terminated is 4 

responsible for all assessments, obligations and liabilities incurred through the 5 

effective date of termination, including obligations that extend beyond the effective 6 

date of termination. 7 

(5)  The Commission shall not bear any costs related to a state that is 8 

found to be in default or whose membership in this Compact has been terminated 9 

unless agreed upon in writing between the Commission and the defaulting state. 10 

(6)  The defaulting state may appeal the action of the Commission by 11 

petitioning the U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia or the federal district in 12 

which the Commission has its principal offices. The prevailing party shall be awarded 13 

all costs of such litigation, including reasonable attorneys' fees. 14 

(c)  Dispute Resolution 15 

(1)  Upon request by a party state, the Commission shall attempt to 16 

resolve disputes related to the Compact that arise among party states and between 17 

party and non-party states. 18 

(2)  The Commission shall promulgate a rule providing for both 19 

mediation and binding dispute resolution for disputes, as appropriate. 20 

(3)  In the event the Commission cannot resolve disputes among party 21 

states arising under this Compact: 22 

(A)  The party states may submit the issues in dispute to an 23 

arbitration panel, which will be comprised of individuals appointed by the 24 

Compact administrator in each of the affected party states and an individual 25 

mutually agreed upon by the Compact administrators of all the party states 26 

involved in the dispute. 27 

(B)  The decision of a majority of the arbitrators shall be final 28 

and binding. 29 

(d)  Enforcement 30 

(1)  The Commission, in the reasonable exercise of its discretion, shall 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB0067A -31- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

enforce the provisions and rules of this Compact. 1 

(2)  By majority vote, the Commission may initiate legal action in the 2 

U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia or the federal district in which the 3 

Commission has its principal offices against a party state that is in default to enforce 4 

compliance with the provisions of this Compact and its promulgated rules and bylaws. 5 

The relief sought may include both injunctive relief and damages. In the event judicial 6 

enforcement is necessary, the prevailing party shall be awarded all costs of such 7 

litigation, including reasonable attorneys' fees. 8 

(3)  The remedies herein shall not be the exclusive remedies of the 9 

Commission. The Commission may pursue any other remedies available under federal 10 

or state law. 11 

ARTICLE X 12 

Effective Date, Withdrawal and Amendment 13 

(a)  This Compact shall become effective and binding on the earlier of the date 14 

of legislative enactment of this Compact into law by no less than twenty-six (26) states 15 

or December 31, 2018. All party states to this Compact, that also were parties to the 16 

prior Nurse Licensure Compact, superseded by this Compact, ("Prior Compact"), shall 17 

be deemed to have withdrawn from said Prior Compact within six (6) months after the 18 

effective date of this Compact. 19 

(b)  Each party state to this Compact shall continue to recognize a nurse's 20 

multistate licensure privilege to practice in that party state issued under the Prior 21 

Compact until such party state has withdrawn from the Prior Compact. 22 

(c)  Any party state may withdraw from this Compact by enacting a statute 23 

repealing the same. A party state's withdrawal shall not take effect until six (6) months 24 

after enactment of the repealing statute. 25 

(d)  A party state's withdrawal or termination shall not affect the continuing 26 

requirement of the withdrawing or terminated state's licensing board to report adverse 27 

actions and significant investigations occurring prior to the effective date of such 28 

withdrawal or termination. 29 

(e)  Nothing contained in this Compact shall be construed to invalidate or 30 

prevent any nurse licensure agreement or other cooperative arrangement between a 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -32- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

party state and a non-party state that is made in accordance with the other provisions 1 

of this Compact. 2 

(f)  This Compact may be amended by the party states. No amendment to this 3 

Compact shall become effective and binding upon the party states unless and until it is 4 

enacted into the laws of all party states. 5 

(g)  Representatives of non-party states to this Compact shall be invited to 6 

participate in the activities of the Commission, on a nonvoting basis, prior to the 7 

adoption of this Compact by all states. 8 

ARTICLE XI 9 

Construction and Severability 10 

This Compact shall be liberally construed so as to effectuate the purposes 11 

thereof. The provisions of this Compact shall be severable, and if any phrase, clause, 12 

sentence or provision of this Compact is declared to be contrary to the constitution of 13 

any party state or of the United States, or if the applicability thereof to any 14 

government, agency, person or circumstance is held invalid, the validity of the 15 

remainder of this Compact and the applicability thereof to any government, agency, 16 

person or circumstance shall not be affected thereby. If this Compact shall be held to 17 

be contrary to the constitution of any party state, this Compact shall remain in full 18 

force and effect as to the remaining party states and in full force and effect as to the 19 

party state affected as to all severable matters. 20 

   * Sec. 24.  AS 09.55.560(2) is amended to read: 21 

(2)  "health care provider" means an acupuncturist licensed under 22 

AS 08.06; an audiologist or speech-language pathologist licensed under AS 08.11; a 23 

chiropractor licensed under AS 08.20; a dental hygienist licensed under AS 08.32; a 24 

dentist licensed under AS 08.36; a nurse licensed under AS 08.68 or AS 08.69; a 25 

dispensing optician licensed under AS 08.71; a naturopath licensed under AS 08.45; 26 

an optometrist licensed under AS 08.72; a pharmacist licensed under AS 08.80; a 27 

physical therapist or occupational therapist licensed under AS 08.84; a physician or 28 

physician assistant licensed under AS 08.64; a podiatrist; a psychologist and a 29 

psychological associate licensed under AS 08.86; a hospital as defined in 30 

AS 47.32.900, including a governmentally owned or operated hospital; an employee 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB0067A -33- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

of a health care provider acting within the course and scope of employment; an 1 

ambulatory surgical facility and other organizations whose primary purpose is the 2 

delivery of health care, including a health maintenance organization, individual 3 

practice association, integrated delivery system, preferred provider organization or 4 

arrangement, and a physical hospital organization; 5 

   * Sec. 25.  AS 09.65.095(c)(1) is amended to read: 6 

(1)  "health care provider" means a nurse licensed under AS 08.68 or 7 

AS 08.69, a physician licensed under AS 08.64, and a person certified by a hospital as 8 

competent to take blood samples; 9 

   * Sec. 26.  AS 12.62.400(a) is amended to read: 10 

(a)  To obtain a national criminal history record check for determining a 11 

person's qualifications for a license, permit, registration, employment, or position, a 12 

person shall submit the person's fingerprints to the department with the fee established 13 

by AS 12.62.160. The department may submit the fingerprints to the Federal Bureau 14 

of Investigation to obtain a national criminal history record check of the person for the 15 

purpose of evaluating a person's qualifications for 16 

(1)  a license or conditional contractor's permit to manufacture, sell, 17 

offer for sale, possess for sale or barter, traffic in, or barter an alcoholic beverage 18 

under AS 04.11; 19 

(2)  licensure as a mortgage lender, a mortgage broker, or a mortgage 20 

loan originator under AS 06.60; 21 

(3)  admission to the Alaska Bar Association under AS 08.08; 22 

(4)  licensure as a collection agency operator under AS 08.24; 23 

(5)  a certificate of fitness to handle explosives under AS 08.52; 24 

(6)  licensure as a massage therapist under AS 08.61; 25 

(7)  licensure to practice nursing under AS 08.68 or AS 08.69, or 26 

certification as a nurse aide under AS 08.68; 27 

(8)  certification as a real estate appraiser under as 08.87; 28 

(9)  a position involving supervisory or disciplinary power over a minor 29 

or dependent adult for which criminal justice information may be released under 30 

AS 12.62.160(b)(9); 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -34- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

(10)  a teacher certificate under AS 14.20; 1 

(11)  a registration or license to operate a marijuana establishment 2 

under AS 17.38; 3 

(12)  admittance to a police training program under AS 18.65.230 or for 4 

certification as a police officer under AS 18.65.240 if that person's prospective 5 

employer does not have access to a criminal justice information system; 6 

(13)  licensure as a security guard under AS 18.65.400 — 18.65.490; 7 

(14)  a concealed handgun permit under AS 18.65.700 — 18.65.790; 8 

(15)  licensure as an insurance producer, managing general agent, 9 

reinsurance intermediary broker, reinsurance intermediary manager, surplus lines 10 

broker, or independent adjuster under AS 21.27; 11 

(16)  serving and executing process issued by a court by a person 12 

designated under AS 22.20.130; 13 

(17)  a school bus driver license under AS 28.15.046; 14 

(18)  licensure as an operator or an instructor for a commercial driver 15 

training school under AS 28.17; 16 

(19)  registration as a broker-dealer, agent, investment adviser 17 

representative, or investment adviser under AS 45.56.300 — 45.56.350; 18 

(20)  licensure, license renewal, certification, certification renewal, or 19 

payment from the Department of Health and Social Services of an individual and an 20 

entity subject to the requirements for a criminal history check under AS 47.05.310, 21 

including 22 

(A)  a public home care provider described in AS 47.05.017; 23 

(B)  a provider of home and community-based waiver services 24 

financed under AS 47.07.030(c); 25 

(C)  a case manager to coordinate community mental health 26 

services under AS 47.30.530; 27 

(D)  an entity listed in AS 47.32.010(b), including an owner, 28 

officer, director, member, partner, employee, volunteer, or contractor of an 29 

entity; or 30 

(E)  an individual or entity not described in (A) — (D) of this 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB0067A -35- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

paragraph that is required by statute or regulation to be licensed or certified by 1 

the Department of Health and Social Services or that is eligible to receive 2 

payments, in whole or in part, from the Department of Health and Social 3 

Services to provide for the health, safety, and welfare of persons who are 4 

served by the programs administered by the Department of Health and Social 5 

Services. 6 

   * Sec. 27.  AS 18.20.095(e)(2) is amended to read: 7 

(2)  "licensed staff member" means a person who is employed by the 8 

hospital to provide direct patient care and who is licensed or certified in the state as a 9 

physician or physician assistant under AS 08.64, direct-entry midwife under AS 08.65, 10 

nurse under AS 08.68 or AS 08.69, or nurse aide under AS 08.68, or physical 11 

therapist or occupational therapist under AS 08.84; 12 

   * Sec. 28.  AS 18.20.499(3) is amended to read: 13 

(3)  "nurse" means an individual licensed to practice registered nursing 14 

or practical nursing under AS 08.68 or AS 08.69 who provides nursing services 15 

through direct patient care or clinical services and includes a nurse manager when 16 

delivering in-hospital patient care; 17 

   * Sec. 29.  AS 18.23.070(3) is amended to read: 18 

(3)  "health care provider" means an acupuncturist licensed under 19 

AS 08.06; a chiropractor licensed under AS 08.20; a dental hygienist licensed under 20 

AS 08.32; a dentist licensed under AS 08.36; a nurse licensed under AS 08.68 or 21 

AS 08.69; a dispensing optician licensed under AS 08.71; an optometrist licensed 22 

under AS 08.72; a pharmacist licensed under AS 08.80; a physical therapist or 23 

occupational therapist licensed under AS 08.84; a physician licensed under AS 08.64; 24 

a podiatrist; a psychologist and a psychological associate licensed under AS 08.86; a 25 

hospital as defined in AS 47.32.900, including a governmentally owned or operated 26 

hospital; and an employee of a health care provider acting within the course and scope 27 

of employment; 28 

   * Sec. 30.  AS 47.07.045(b) is amended to read: 29 

(b)  Before the department may terminate payment for services provided under 30 

(a) of this section 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -36- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

(1)  the recipient must have had an annual assessment to determine 1 

whether the recipient continues to meet the standards under (a) of this section; 2 

(2)  the annual assessment must have been reviewed by an independent 3 

qualified health care professional under contract with the department; for purposes of 4 

this paragraph, "independent qualified health care professional" means, 5 

(A)  for a waiver based on intellectual or developmental 6 

disability, a person who is qualified under 42 C.F.R. 483.430 as a qualified 7 

intellectual disability professional; 8 

(B)  for other allowable waivers, a registered nurse licensed 9 

under AS 08.68 or AS 08.69, or advanced practice registered nurse licensed 10 

under AS 08.68 who is qualified to assess children with complex medical 11 

conditions, older Alaskans, and adults with physical disabilities for medical 12 

assistance waivers; and 13 

(3)  the annual assessment must find that the recipient's condition has 14 

materially improved since the previous assessment; for purposes of this paragraph, 15 

"materially improved" means that a recipient who has previously qualified for a 16 

waiver for 17 

(A)  a child with complex medical conditions, no longer needs 18 

technical assistance for a life-threatening condition, and is expected to be 19 

placed in a skilled nursing facility for less than 30 days each year; 20 

(B)  intellectual or developmental disability, no longer needs the 21 

level of care provided by an intermediate care facility for persons with 22 

intellectual and developmental disabilities either because the qualifying 23 

diagnosis has changed or the recipient is able to demonstrate the ability to 24 

function in a home setting without the need for waiver services; or 25 

(C)  an older Alaskan or adult with a physical disability, no 26 

longer has a functional limitation or cognitive impairment that would result in 27 

the need for nursing home placement, and is able to demonstrate the ability to 28 

function in a home setting without the need for waiver services. 29 

   * Sec. 31.  AS 47.33.020(d) is amended to read: 30 

(d)  An assisted living home may provide intermittent nursing services to a 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB0067A -37- SB 67 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

resident who does not require 24-hour nursing services and supervision. Intermittent 1 

nursing services may be provided only by a nurse licensed under AS 08.68 or 2 

AS 08.69, or by a person to whom a nursing task has been delegated under (e) of this 3 

section. 4 

   * Sec. 32.  AS 47.33.020(e) is amended to read: 5 

(e)  A person who is on the staff of an assisted living home and who is not a 6 

nurse licensed under AS 08.68 or AS 08.69 may perform a nursing task in that home 7 

if 8 

(1)  the authority to perform that nursing task is delegated to that person 9 

by a nurse licensed under AS 08.68 or AS 08.69; and 10 

(2)  that nursing task is specified in regulations adopted by the Board of 11 

Nursing as a task that may be delegated. 12 

   * Sec. 33.  AS 47.33.020(f) is amended to read: 13 

(f)  A resident who needs skilled nursing care may, with the consent of the 14 

assisted living home, arrange for that care to be provided in the home by a nurse 15 

licensed under AS 08.68 or AS 08.69 if that arrangement does not interfere with the 16 

services provided to other residents. 17 

   * Sec. 34.  AS 47.33.020(g) is amended to read: 18 

(g)  As part of a plan to avoid transfer of a resident from the home for medical 19 

reasons, the home may provide, through the services of a nurse who is licensed under 20 

AS 08.68 or AS 08.69, 24-hour skilled nursing care to the resident for not more than 21 

45 consecutive days. 22 

   * Sec. 35.  AS 47.33.020(h) is amended to read: 23 

(h)  If a resident has received 24-hour skilled nursing care for the 45-day limit 24 

set by (g) of this section, the resident or the resident's representative may elect to have 25 

the resident remain in the home without continuation of 24-hour skilled nursing care if 26 

the home agrees to retain the resident after 27 

(1)  the home and either the resident or the resident's representative 28 

have consulted with the resident's physician; 29 

(2)  the home and either the resident or the resident's representative 30 

have discussed the consequences and risks involved in the election to remain in the 31 



   32-GS1603\A 

SB 67 -38- SB0067A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

home; and 1 

(3)  the portion of the resident's assisted living plan that relates to 2 

health-related services has been revised to provide for the resident's health-related 3 

needs without the use of 24-hour skilled nursing care, and the revised plan has been 4 

reviewed by a registered nurse licensed under AS 08.68 or AS 08.69, or advanced 5 

practice registered nurse licensed under AS 08.68, or by the resident's attending 6 

physician. 7 

   * Sec. 36.  AS 47.33.230(c) is amended to read: 8 

(c)  If the assisted living home provides or arranges for the provision of health- 9 

related services to a resident, the home shall ensure that a 10 

(1)  registered nurse licensed under AS 08.68 or AS 08.69, or 11 

advanced practice registered nurse licensed under AS 08.68 reviews the portion of an 12 

assisted living plan that describes how the resident's need for health-related services 13 

will be met; and 14 

(2)  physician's statement about the resident is included in the plan. 15 

   * Sec. 37.  The uncodified law of the State of Alaska is amended by adding a new section to 16 

read: 17 

TRANSITION: REGULATIONS. The Department of Commerce, Community, and 18 

Economic Development may adopt regulations necessary to implement the changes made by 19 

this Act. The regulations take effect under AS 44.62 (Administrative Procedure Act), but not 20 

before the effective date of the law implemented by the regulation. 21 

   * Sec. 38.  Section 37 of this Act takes effect immediately under AS 01.10.070(c). 22 

   * Sec. 39.  Except as provided in sec. 38 of this Act, this Act takes effect January 1, 2022. 23 



From:
To: Board of Dental Examiners (CED sponsored)
Cc:
Subject: Dental Scope of Practice & Sleep Apnea Concerns
Date: Friday, March 5, 2021 11:08:44 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Dental Scope of Practice Final Joint Letter.pdf

 
Attached for your review is a letter requiring your immediate attention. The American Academy of
Sleep Medicine, American Thoracic Society, American Academy of Neurology, and American
Academy of Otolaryngology – Head and Neck Surgery would like to express our concerns regarding a
recently published position statement issued by the American Academy of Dental Sleep Medicine on
the use of home sleep apnea tests (HSATs) by dentists.  Please see the attached letter outlining our
concerns; we urge you to adopt language clarifying the scope of practice for dentists in your state in
relation to the use of HSAT.
 
Contact Eric Albrecht, AASM Advocacy Program Manager, at ealbrecht@aasm.org with any
questions regarding this.
 
 
Kannan Ramar, MD
AASM President
 

 2510 North Frontage Road, Darien, IL 60561
P: 630-737-9700 | F:  630-737-9790 | aasm.org
Follow us: Facebook | Twitter | Linkedin



 

 
March 5, 2021 

 

Dear Dental Board:  

 

On behalf of the undersigned organizations, we are writing to express our concerns regarding a 

recently published position issued by the American Academy of Dental Sleep Medicine 

(AADSM). This statement encourages the use of home sleep apnea tests by dentists for the 

diagnosis of obstructive sleep apnea (OSA). We argue that ordering, administering, and 

interpreting home sleep apnea tests is outside the scope of practice for dentists, and herein are 

requesting that your board protect both patients and dentists in your state by adopting a policy 

to clarify this fact. 

 

The AADSM position states that it is within the scope of practice for dentists to identify patients 

who are at risk for OSA and then order or administer diagnostic home sleep apnea tests. 

Furthermore, since most state dental boards have no policy addressing this issue, the AADSM 

position indicates that this “silence” gives dentists tacit permission to provide this medical 

service, which is a dangerous interpretation. This position statement is in direct conflict with that 

of the American Academy of Sleep Medicine (AASM) and a policy of the American Medical 

Association (AMA), both of which emphasize that a home sleep apnea test is a medical 

assessment that must be ordered by a medical provider and, moreover, must be reviewed and 

interpreted by a physician who is either board-certified in sleep medicine or overseen by a 

board-certified sleep medicine physician. The AADSM position also is not supported by the 

policy statement of the American Dental Association (ADA) or by a white paper from the 

American Association of Orthodontists (AAO).  

 



An evidence-based AASM clinical practice guideline indicates that the decision to order a home 

sleep apnea test should be made by a medical provider only after reviewing the patient’s 

medical history and conducting a face-to-face examination. The medical evaluation should 

include a thorough sleep history and a physical examination of the respiratory, cardiovascular, 

and neurologic systems. The sleep history is important because many patients have more than 

one sleep disorder or present with atypical sleep apnea symptoms. The medical provider also 

should identify chronic diseases and conditions that are associated with increased risk for OSA, 

such as obesity, hypertension, stroke, and congestive heart failure. An evaluation by a medical 

provider also is necessary to rule out conditions that place the patient at increased risk of 

central sleep apnea and other forms of non-obstructive sleep-disordered breathing, which 

typical home sleep apnea tests are insufficient to detect. While dentists can use questionnaires 

and examine the oral structures to screen patients for symptoms of OSA, they are untrained in 

conducting the comprehensive medical evaluation needed to assess OSA risk.  

 

Based on this medical evaluation, the medical provider can determine if diagnostic testing is 

indicated to confirm a clinical suspicion of OSA. The selection of the appropriate diagnostic test 

— either in-lab polysomnography or a home sleep apnea test — is critical. Because a home 

sleep apnea test is less sensitive than polysomnography, it is more likely to produce false 

negative results when ordered inappropriately. The resulting misdiagnosis can lead to significant 

harm for the patient. Because dentists lack the required medical education and training needed 

to order, administer, and interpret diagnostic tests for OSA, implementing the AADSM position 

could jeopardize the quality of patient care.  

 

In addition, the AADSM position does not align with the current national and local coverage 

determination policies of the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) and the policies 

of private insurers for reimbursement of home sleep apnea tests and oral appliances for OSA. 



These medical insurance policies also require a comprehensive clinical evaluation by a medical 

provider to determine that the test or treatment is reasonable and necessary. Patients will have 

to pay full price for the uncovered services provided by a dentist, dramatically increasing their 

out-of-pocket costs.  

 

It is for the aforementioned reasons that our organizations urge your board to adopt a policy 

clarifying that ordering and administering a home sleep apnea test is outside the scope of 

practice for dentists in your state. We encourage you to use as a model the policy adopted by 

the Georgia Board of Dentistry, “Prescribing and Fabrication of Sleep Apnea Appliances”:  

Depending upon the diagnosis of the type and severity, one possible treatment option for 

obstructive apnea is the use of oral appliances. The design, fitting and use of oral 

appliances and the maintenance of oral health related to the appliance falls within the 

scope of practice of dentistry. The continuing evaluation of a person’s sleep apnea, the 

effect of the oral appliance on the apnea, and the need for, and type of, alternative 

treatment do not fall within the scope of dentistry. Therefore, the prescribing of sleep 

apnea appliance does not fall within the scope of the practice of dentistry. It is the 

position of the Board that a dentist may not order a sleep study. Home sleep studies 

should only be ordered and interpreted by a licensed physician. Therefore, only under 

the orders of a physician should a dentist fabricate a sleep apnea appliance for the 

designated patient and conduct only those tasks permitted under O.C.G.A. Title 43, 

Chapter 11. (adopted 04/01/16)  

 

We thank you for your consideration of our concerns. For any additional information or to 

discuss this issue, please contact AASM Executive Director Steve Van Hout at (630) 737-9700. 

 

 



Sincerely,  

Kannan Ramar, MD, FAASM 

American Academy of Sleep Medicine  

President 

 

Carol R. Bradford, MD, MS 

American Academy of Otolaryngology-Head 

and Neck Surgery 

President 

James C. Stevens, MD, FAAN 

American Academy of Neurology 

President 

 

Juan C. Celedón, MD, DrPH, ATSF 

American Thoracic Society 

President 

 



Task List 



 
 
 
 

Adjourn 




